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Financial Highlight
A 5 4

Profit attributable to the
equity shareholders increased

by 6.5% to approximately
HK$107.4 million
TE 2 IR R A %
#106.5 % =
#107,400,00078 T

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue reduced by 0.4% to approximately HK$224.0
million

Revenue from mortgage loan receivables decreased by 4.1%
to approximately HK$152.2 million

Profit attributable to the equity shareholders increased by
6.5% to approximately HK$107.4 million

Net profit margin increased by 3.0 percentage points to
47.9%

Basic earnings per share is HK5.5 cents

Gross pawn loan receivables increased by 0.2% to
approximately HK$141.8 million

Gross mortgage loan receivables decreased by 7.0% to
approximately HK$1,137.3 million

° Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B EERAR A

Net profit margin increased by 30
percentage points to 47.9%
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increased by 9.2% to
approximately HK$748.5 million
1BIN9.2% E X
748,500,0007% T

Total amount of new pawn
loans granted increased by

9.2% to approximately
HK$748.5 million

BB DT E BRI

increased by 14.8% to
approximately HK$9,300 per
transaction
BEN4.8%EBERZHN
9,3007& 7T

Average amount of pawn
loans granted increased by

14.8% 1o approximately
H K$9,300 per transaction
BEENAEEERTHLE

Financial Highlight
g

was kept at around 48.5%
#EIFEA85% LT

As at 29 February 2020, the
average loan-to-value ratio of
the mortgage loan portfolio

was kept at around 48.5%
RN-_E-ZEF_A—+NH"

9.2% =% 2114.8% 55X 5% RIBEMERE L 2 THER

748,500,000 7T 93003 7t uiiEt R g5 EA8.5 %
S ’ T

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE X KRIE

° Total amount of new pawn loans granted increased by 9.2% e BB RGN 2%% 4

to approximately HK$748.5 million

Average amount of pawn loans granted increased by 14.8%
to approximately HK$9,300 per transaction

Number of new pawn loans (larger than HK$100,000)
granted increased by 29.8% to 544 cases

Total amount of new mortgage loans granted decreased by
33.5% to approximately HK$508.8 million

Average amount of mortgage loans granted decreased by
22.2% to approximately HK$2.9 million

Number of new mortgage loans granted decreased by
14.6% to 176 cases

Net interest margin for pawn loans increased by 0.4
percentage points to 41.0%

Net interest margin for mortgage loans increased by 0.3
percentage points to 9.5%

As at 29 February 2020, the average loan-to-value ratio of
the mortgage loan portfolio was kept at around 48.5%
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Five-year Financial Summary

A B B

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“ECEE “T-NE —T-)\F —T—tF “ERF

Profitability data (HK$'000) ZFgEH&E (FEx)

Revenue from pawn loan HEEHRER W
business
— Interest income from pawn - BEEZRZF|S
loans WA 10,213 7,843 58,754 61,808 61,877
— Interest income from pawn - AT {ETAER
loan receivables at fair value ~ ZEWHEEZRZ
through profit or loss FEWA 54,264 51,351 - - -
- Gain on disposal of - HEQKEEEY
repossessed assets Wz 7,266 6,914 6,107 4,801 (814)
Total revenue from pawn loan B EHRER 7 @IS
business 71,743 66,108 64,861 66,609 61,063
Revenue from mortgage loan  RIBIEME R ER 2
business
— Interest income from - RIBERER
mortgage loans ZFEHA 152,216 158,655 152,415 148,541 125,595
Total revenue Bl 223,959 224,763 217,276 215,150 186,658
Operating profit &R 166,649 163,572 158,162 157,647 132,027
Profit attributable to equity IR R LR T
shareholders 107,383 100,820 100,908 103,230 91,366
Earnings per share — basic FREF - EAR (L)
(HK cents) 5.5 5.1 4.8 49 *3.9
Profitability ratios (%) BRI R (%)
Operating profit margin BRI 74.4 72.8 72.8 73.3 70.7
Net profit margin B 47.9 449 46.4 48.0 48.9
Effective tax rate (Note 1) BB (K1) 16.3 17.1 16.4 16.4 16.5
Return on total assets (Note 2) B @5aMEIR (FH5H2) 7.5 7.0 6.9 7.6 8.1
Return on shareholders’ equity FREREm B (FI7E3)
(Note 3) 12.0 12.3 12.8 14.0 13.7
Net interest margin (Note 4) FEE (MisEd) 13.1 12.4 13.1 14.5 17.5
- pawn loans - BEEN 41.0 40.6 40.4 40.3 40.5
- mortgage loans - RIBEHRER 9.5 9.2 9.8 10.8 13.1

Note 1  Effective income tax rate is equal to the current tax divided by  Hfzt1 FTEAERRENESEE 2 BT ER BB A

the profit before taxation for the respective year il

Note 2 Return on total assets is calculated by dividing profit for the year  [ffs¥2 EBEARELORIIZFERNENGUNSFENEEE
by the total assets as at the respective year HAAE

Note 3 Return on equity is calculated by dividing profit for the year by  [fis¥3 #EREIMIIEFRNHANB AR FE 2R @ ET
the total equity as at the respective year i

Note 4 Net interest margin during the year refers to our interest income — Mi¥4 FRZFEZIERNEEEBHRE ERLIRIBET
in respect of our pawn loans and mortgage loans less the BRZAERAREERERAR  RAFANEEE
respective finance costs, divided by the average of month-end 2 BN E SRS SR BT
gross loan receivables balances of the corresponding loans during
the year

* Amounts for the year ended 28 February 2015 was adjusted for the = * HE_Z-hF A+ N \BLFEZeFEEH_-_Z
bonus issued on 18 August 2016. —RENATNBET AR TIATE -

e Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEFEHZEEZERAR A



Five-year Financial Summary

A B B R

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
k- Sl 33 “ZT-NF —N\F “EtF N2
Operating ratios (as a e E (hikaE
percentage of revenue) (%) HBEZLt) (%)
Staff costs BTHA 13.6 13.0 12.9 12.6 13.6
Rental expenses plus depreciationf & Bz 3 hifs f 4
of right-of-use assets EENE 5.9 6.2 6.2 6.0 6.8
Advertising and promotions BEREE 1.8 4.4 5.2 5.4 5.3
Assets and liabilities data BEEREERE
(HK$'000) (F#&x)
Non-current assets FRBEE 143,074 84,131 89,242 94,665 82,243
Current assets MENVEE 1,285,273 1,357,172 1,376,892 1,269,878 1,042,906
Current liabilities mEAE 356,662 455,909 515,477 489,334 333,589
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 176,366 162,565 162,528 136,773 124,966
Capital and reserves BER K[ 895,319 822,829 788,129 738,436 666,594
Gross loan receivables - principal JEINE F 45 - K& 1,279,143 1,364,806 1,382,962 1,294,193 1,032,784
— Gross pawn loan receivables - JEWEE BB 141,815 141,511 130,866 143,140 141,755
— Gross mortgage loan - BUIERBERER
receivables ik 1,137,328 1,223,295 1,252,096 1,151,053 890,779
— Gross unsecured loan - BB AR
receivables Fcke] - - - - 250
Assets and working capital ZBERZEBELESHE
data
Current ratios (Note 5) MENEL 2 (FIFES) 3.6 3.0 2.7 2.6 3.1
Gearing ratios (%) (Note 6) fEE L E (%) (Fi3E6) 55.2 73.6 84.4 80.8 63.7
Net assets value per share (HK$) B EEFE (BT)
(Note 7) (Fi5E7) 0.462 0.424 0.377 0.345 0314
Note 5 Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current M35 REILERDNREERZRBEER UGB EGET
liabilities as at the respective year end i
Note 6 Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings (summation — Fffif6 fEEH RIREFERZEEE (FITERBES
of bank loans and overdrafts, obligations under finance leases, gﬁéj’k SEE HUER BEBERARZERR
other loans, loans from immediate holding company and debt EBEITEBELR CBE) RUAERRETE
securities issued) by total equity as at the respective year end
Note 7 Net assets value per share is calculated by dividing net assets by  Wi5F7 SREEFENREERNEEFERUKRKE

gEtH

the total number of shares as at the respective year end

Annual Report 2020 =& — TEF R e



Five-year Financial Summary

A B B

Total revenue from pawn loan business Revenue from mortgage loan business
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Return on shareholders’ equity
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Net interest margin - pawn loans
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Chairman Statement

EViE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Oi Wah
Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “our
Company”), and its subsidiaries (together with the Company
collectively referred to as the “Group” or “our Group”), | am
delighted to present the annual report of the Group for the year
ended 29 February 2020 (“FY2020").

FY2020 is a year of challenge. The prolonged social unrest,
together with the outbreak of the pandemic of Coronavirus
Disease 2019 (“COVID-19"), brought the economy into recession
and Hong Kong GDP has suffered its worst decline on record.
My heartfelt thanks to all our colleagues and management team
who are still walking together through the storm and striving to
maintain a steady performance.

During the year, the Group recorded a total revenue of
approximately HK$224.0 million, representing a slight decrease
of approximately 0.4%. In FY2020, the profit attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders” or “our
Shareholders”) has increased by 6.5% and reached approximately
HK$107.4 million.

Currently, COVID-19 has been largely contained in Hong Kong and
the government is attempting to reopen the economy gradually. It
is expected to see a rebound in local retail and food and beverage
consumption in the short run. However, import and export
markets remain unpredictable, as the whole world is suffering
from an economic setback due to the spread of COVID-19.
Therefore, the Group tends to continue to focus on reinforcing
its risk management policy and be proactive in adopting timely
measures to balance its risk and return in the long run.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the unremitting efforts of our management team and

employees. We will continue to seize opportunities and strive for
the best interests for our Shareholders and the Company.

Chan Kai Ho, Edward
Chairman and Executive Director

26 May 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Our Group is a financing service provider in Hong Kong operating
under the brand name of “Oi Wah", which is principally engaged
in providing secured financing, including mortgage loans and
pawn loans.

MORTGAGE LOAN BUSINESS

During FY2020, the mortgage loan business remained as a major
source of income of the Group. Revenue generated from the
mortgage loan business in FY2020 accounted for approximately
68.0% of the Group’s total revenue during the year. During the
year, the revenue generated from the mortgage loan business
slightly decreased from approximately HK$158.7 million for the
year ended 28 February 2019 (“FY2019") to HK$152.2 million in
FY2020, representing a decrease of 4.1% or HK$6.5 million. The
principal of gross mortgage loan receivables reached HK$1,137.3
million as at 29 February 2020. During the year, there were 176
new cases of mortgage loan transactions, with an average loan
size of approximately HK$2.9 million.

In FY2020, the Group continued to adopt a prudent and cautious
approach when granting loans, as well as maintain a higher
proportion of first mortgage loans in the Group's portfolio to
manage risk. During the year, the loan-to-value ratio for the first
mortgage was around 47.7%, while the overall loan-to-value
ratio for subordinate mortgage was around 56.0%, in which
the loan-to-value ratio of subordinate mortgage that the Group
participated in was around 12.1%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B i e 4 T

PAWN LOAN BUSINESS

During FY2020, due to an ongoing rise in gold price, the revenue
derived from the pawn loan business increased from HK$66.1
million to HK$71.8 million, representing an increase of 8.6% or
HK$5.7 million. The aggregate loan amount increased by 9.2% or
HK$63.1 million from approximately HK$685.4 million in FY2019
to approximately HK$748.5 million in FY2020.

During the year, the Group continued to channel resources
to advertising and promotion to enhance the Group's brand
exposure. Such effort has generated demand for one-to-one
pawn loan appointment services for pawn loans exceeding
HK$0.1 million. The number of pawn loan transactions granted of
such amount increased from 419 transactions in FY2019 to 544
transactions in FY2020. The average loan amount also increased
to approximately HK$9,300 per transaction (FY2019: HK$8,100
per transaction).

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

During the year of 2019, the property prices and transaction
volumes of the local property market experienced substantial
fluctuations. According to the findings of the Rating and Valuation
Department of the Hong Kong government, home prices had
been climbing since the beginning of the year and reached a
record high in May 2019. However, the property market bull run
was halted in the latter half of 2019 by the ongoing local social
unrest and the prolonged US-China trade friction. As such, only a
5% increase in the overall home prices was recorded in the year
of 2019.

It is expected that the local property market will remain volatile
in light of the global outbreak of COVID-19. Nevertheless,
given there is a constant demand for small and medium-sized
apartments, and the fact that the Hong Kong government has
raised the mortgage cap for first-time homebuyers, it is believed
that the market price of local properties with a value below
HK$10.0 million will be relatively stable.

Meanwhile, international gold prices rose by approximately 15%
during the latter half of FY2020, thereby triggering a growth in
the size of our pawn loans. It is expected that various factors,
such as ongoing global economic uncertainties as well as the
implementation of quantitative easing policies by the world’s
major central banks will continue to stimulate the international
gold market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our Group's revenue reduced from approximately HK$224.8
million for FY2019 to approximately HK$224.0 million for FY2020,
representing a slight decrease of approximately HK$0.8 million
or 0.4%. The decrease was attributable to the decrease in our
interest income from the mortgage loan business of approximately
HK$6.5 million or 4.1% from approximately HK$158.7 million
in FY2019 to approximately HK$152.2 million in FY2020,
netting off the increase in our revenue generated from our
pawn loan business by approximately HK$5.7 million or 8.6%
from approximately HK$66.1 million in FY2019 to approximately
HK$71.8 million in FY2020.

Mortgage loan business

The decrease in our interest income derived from our mortgage
loan business was mainly due to the fact that the Group adopted
a more cautious approach in granting new mortgage loans
during FY2020. As such, the average month-end balance for the
gross mortgage loans receivables for the year decreased from
approximately HK$1,273.3 million in FY2019 to approximately
HK$1,220.3 million in FY2020, in which the total amount of new
mortgage loans granted was approximately HK$508.8 million
during FY2020 (FY2019: approximately HK$765.5 million).

Pawn loan business

The increase in the revenue generated from our pawn loan
business was due to the increase in our interest income earned
from our pawn loan receivables of approximately HK$5.3 million
or 9.0% from approximately HK$59.2 million in FY2019 to
approximately HK$64.5 million in FY2020, and also the increase
in revenue from disposal of repossessed assets of approximately
HK$0.4 million.

The increase in our interest income earned from our pawn loan
receivables was primarily attributable to the increase in the
aggregate amount of pawn loans granted. The amount rose from
approximately HK$685.4 million in FY2019 to approximately
HK$748.5 million in FY2020 with the average amount of pawn
loans granted increased from approximately HK$8,100 per
transaction in FY2019 to approximately HK$9,300 per transaction
FY2020.

Revenue from disposal of repossessed assets represents the gain/
(loss) of the Group as we sold the repossessed assets in the event
of default in repayment of our pawn loans. The increase in our
gain on disposal of repossessed assets in FY2020 was mainly due
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to the increase of the gold price per ounce from around US$1,400
in August 2019 to around US$1,600 in February 2020. Since every
pawn loan has a loan term of four lunar months, revenue was
derived from the appreciation of gold price in FY2020 and thus an
increase in gain on disposal of repossessed assets in FY2020 was
recorded.

Other revenue

Other revenue decreased from approximately HK$4.9 million in
FY2019 to HK$3.4 million in FY2020, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$1.5 million or 30.6%, which was mainly due
to the decrease in our credit-related fee income by approximately
HK$1.8 million in FY2020, which was offset by the increase in our
rental income of approximately HK$0.3 million from approximately
HK$1.6 million in FY2019 to approximately HK$1.9 million in
FY2020.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses decreased by approximately HK$6.4 million
or 9.8% from approximately HK$65.1 million in FY2019 to
approximately HK$58.7 million in FY2020.

Staff costs increased by approximately HK$1.1 million or 3.8%
from approximately HK$29.3 million in FY2019 to approximately
HK$30.4 million in FY2020. The increase was mainly attributable
to the increase in salaries and other benefits and provision for
long service payment of approximately HK$0.5 million and HK$0.4
million in FY2020 respectively.

According to the new Accounting Standard HKFRS 16, all
operating lease should be treated as finance lease in FY2020.
Thus, the contractual liabilities for the rental agreements are
discounted and recognised as finance lease assets. Rental
expenses and depreciation for right-to-use assets slightly increased
by approximately HK$0.2 million or 1.5% from approximately
HK$13.0 million in FY2019 to approximately HK$13.2 million in
FY2020. The increase was mainly due to the effect for the increase
in the rental expenses under the terms in the rental agreements
for several pawnshops during FY2020.

Notwithstanding the increase in staff costs, rental expenses and
depreciation for right-to-use assets in FY2020, other operating
expenses decreased from approximately HK$22.8 million in
FY2019 to approximately HK$15.1 million in FY2020. This was
mainly resulted from the decrease in advertising expenses and
legal and professional fees of approximately HK$5.7 million and
HK$1.3 million respectively.
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Finance costs

The finance costs decreased by approximately HK$3.6 million
or 8.6% from approximately HK$42.0 million in FY2019 to
approximately HK$38.4 million in FY2020. The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in average month-end balance for
other loans from approximately HK$330.7 million in FY2019 to
approximately HK$243.9 million in FY2020.

Charge for impairment losses on loan receivables
For FY2020

The charge for impairment losses on loan receivables of HK$2.0
million in FY2020 was measured based on the requirement under
HKFRS 9. The charge for impairment losses represented a further
impairment made to a mortgage loan (same mortgage loan
impaired in FY2019) which had been overdue for more than 1
year and the management considered there is a growing likelihood
the value of the collateral of the said loan cannot fully cover the
outstanding amount.

For FY2019

The charge for impairment losses on loan receivables of HK$1.0
million in FY2019 was measured based on the requirement under
HKFRS 9. The charge for impairment losses was attributable to a
mortgage loan which had been overdue for more than 1 year and
the management considered there is an increasing possibility that
the value of the collateral of the said loan cannot fully cover the
outstanding amount.

Income tax expenses

Our Group's effective tax rate decreased from approximately
17.1% in FY2019 to approximately 16.3% in FY2020. The
decrease was mainly due to part of the advertising expenses
amounted to approximately HK$5.4 million may not be qualified
as deductible expenses in FY2019. As such, a tax provision of
approximately HK$0.9 million in respect of the above expenses
was recorded in FY2019.

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

Our Group's profit for FY2020 increased to approximately
HK$107.4 million from approximately HK$100.8 million in FY2019,
representing an increase of approximately HK$6.6 million or 6.5%.
The increase was mainly attributable to the decrease in advertising
costs and finance costs of approximately HK$5.7 million and
HK$3.6 million respectively, netting off the increase in expenses
in staff costs and impairment losses on loan receivables which
amounted to HK$1.1 million and HK$1.0 million respectively.
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Liquidity and financial resources and capital structure

During FY2020, the Group's operational and capital requirements
were financed principally through retained earnings, bank loans
and overdrafts, loans from the immediate holding company, other
loans and debt securities issued.

Based on the Group's current and anticipated levels of operation,
the Group's future operations and capital requirements will be
mainly financed through bank loans and overdrafts, loans from
the immediate holding company, other loans, retained earnings
and share capital. There were no significant commitments for
capital expenditure as at 29 February 2020.

As at 29 February 2020, cash and cash equivalents (net of
bank overdraft) amounted to approximately HK$55.7 million,
representing a net increase of approximately HK$19.5 million as
compared to the position as at 28 February 2019. The increase
was attributable to the following items:

RBEERMBERRERER
R-ZF_ZFFEHBFR ARECEERERRTEE
REBRBEN ROTEFRREX EBERRRZ
B HERMERITEBESRNES -

RRAKEB A RBRZEKRT AREZRREE
REABRERETEEBRTERLEL EBERA
AZER EMER REAMNEEABENES -1
—ETFE AR MEEREARFSRE-

ATE_ZTFE_A-+HA BERBELEEY (K
MR R1TIE S ) £555,700,0008 T W-_ZE— N F
~ A+ N\ BFIEHN419,500,00058 7T © XILIE T 5
ERTH&E

For the year

ended For the year

29 February ended

2020 28 February 2019

Bz H=

—EF-FF —TNF

ZA=+hH —A=+N\H

ILEE IEFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

Net cash generated from operating activities REEGMSR 55 243,347 166,520
Payment for the purchase of plant and BEWE NEE A

equipment (266) (1,884)

Net repayment of other loans BEMERZERFRE (141,120) (26,391)

Net repayment of bank loans RITERZER TR (8,229) (1,417)
Net proceed/(repayment) in loans from the BEBERARIZERZ

immediate holding company Fri8sriE,/ () F8 10,000 (32,000)

Payment for repurchase of shares BRI D 2 508 - (50,367)

Dividend paid BT E (34,893) (15,840)

Finance costs paid B R E AR (37,229) (42,145)

Other net outflow HAth 7t 558 (12,033) (161)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash Be RELEEWEM/
equivalents (R ) 88 19,577 (3,685)
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As at 29 February 2020, except for debt securities issued and
loans from immediate holding company of approximately
HK$162.7 million and approximately HK$104.0 million respectively
which bear interest at a fixed rate, all interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings were bear interest at variable rates. Except
for debt securities issued of approximately HK$162.7 million, all
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings were repayable in one
year. All borrowings from the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars.

Pledge of assets
As at 29 February 2020, the Group had pledged its mortgage loan

receivables with net book value of HK$308.7 million (28 February
2019: HK$597.8 million) for the purpose of obtaining facilities

RZZF-FTE_A-+TNAE BROBTEBESFK

HEEEZRRARZE
104,000,000/ Ji% @ 7E FI K5+ 84h

E=aN

AT

B#1162,700,00078 7T & 49
FrEsTBIRTT

MEMEETIREZHFEANE -BREBITEFESFL
162,700,000 Toh  FTBRTERIT R EMEETETE
A—FREE - AEEMBEESNSITHE

BEEERA

RIZE-TF_A-+NR AEEEERAHKRERF

{&/4308,700,000/8 7w (ZZF—
597,800,000/ 7T ) Z FEWILZ IBIR IR E 3K -

NFZRZ+NB:

LATEERSRTT

from banks and other independent third parties. NEMBIE=F/E -
Contingent liabilities RRER
There were no significant contingent liabilities for the Group as at ~#* —= —FF=A =T B AEREL MR ER L
SR ==
29 February 2020. RBEfE-
IR =
Key financial ratios ERUBLE
As at As at
29 February 28 February
2020 2019
R-ZBZEHF —NEF
—A=thH —HAZ+NH
Current ratio™ TRENLL RO 3.6x 3.0x
Gearing ratio? BELLE® 55.2% 73.6%
For the For the
year ended year ended
29 February 28 February
2020 2019
Bz HE
—EIEF —NF
—A=thH —HZ+NH
LLFE IEFE
Return on total assets® BEBBERR 7.5% 7.0%
Return on equity® MR EIR@ 12.0% 12.3%
Net profit margin® HEA R 47.9% 44.9%
Net interest margin®© FEE® 13.1% 12.4%
— pawn loan services —HEBHRAR 41.0% 40.6%
— mortgage loan services — RBEIRE KRS 9.5% 9.2%
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Notes:

(1) Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current
liabilities as at the respective year end.

(2)  Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings (summation
of bank loans and overdrafts, obligations under finance leases,
loans from the immediate holding company, other loans and debt
securities issued) by total equity as at the respective year end.

(3)  Return on total assets is calculated by dividing profit for the year by
the total assets as at the respective year end.

(4)  Return on equity is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the
total equity as at the respective year end.

(5)  Net profit margin is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the
turnover for the respective year.

(6)  Net interest margin during the year refers to our interest income in
respect of our pawn loans and mortgage loans less the respective
finance costs, divided by the average of month-end gross loan
receivables balances of the corresponding loans during the year.

Current ratio

Our Group's current ratio increased from approximately 3.0 times
as at 28 February 2019 to 3.6 times as at 29 February 2020,
as the amount of other loans decreased from approximately
HK$265.2 million as at 28 February 2019 to approximately
HK$124.1 million as at 29 February 2020.

Gearing ratio

Our Group's gearing ratio decreased from approximately 73.6%
as at 28 February 2019 to approximately 55.2% as at 29 February
2020, which was mainly due to the decrease in other loans of
approximately HK$141.1 million.

Return on total assets and return on equity

Our return on total assets slightly increased from approximately
7.0% in FY2019 to 7.5% in FY2020. Such increase was mainly
due to the decrease in other operating expenses amounted to
approximately HK$6.4 million during the year.
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Our return on equity slightly decreased from approximately 12.3%
in FY2019 to 12.0% in FY2020. This was mainly due to the
decrease in gearing ratio during FY2020. In view of the current
volatile market conditions, the management of the Company
decided to adopt a more prudent strategy in granting new loans
and thus less funding was required during FY2020. This led to a
drop in the Group’s borrowings and thereby limited the available
funds of the Group to lend to our customers. As such, the Group's
return on equity slightly decreased in FY2020 notwithstanding the
positive net interest margin of the Group.

Net profit margin

The Group recorded an increase in the net profit margin from
approximately 44.9% in FY2019 to approximately 47.9% in
FY2020. This was mainly due to a decrease in other operating
expenses of approximately HK$6.4 million during FY2020.

Net interest margin

The net interest margin increased from approximately 12.4%
in FY2019 to approximately 13.1% in FY2020. The reason for
such an increase was mainly due to the upward adjustment of
the interest rate charged on our mortgage loans since the fourth
quarter of 2018.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 29 February 2020, our Group had a total of 50 staff
(28 February 2019: 50). Total staff costs (including Directors’
emoluments) were approximately HK$30.4 million for FY2020
(FY2019: approximately HK$29.3 million). Remuneration is
determined with reference to market conditions and the
performance, qualifications and experience of each individual
employee. Bonus based on individual performance will be paid to
employees as recognition of and reward for their contributions.
Other benefits include a share option scheme and contributions
to statutory mandatory provident fund scheme to our Group’s
employees in Hong Kong.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Our Group did not engage in any material acquisition or disposal
during FY2020.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group does not have
any present plans for material investments and capital assets.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the local business environment is challenging, as
the Hong Kong economy has entered a technical recession due
to the double blow of social unrest and the COVID-19 pandemic.
Many enterprises, especially SMEs, have decided to postpone
expansion plans or reduce the scale of expansion until they see a
sustainable recovery from COVID-19 and the resumption of vital
economic activities.

The Group has adopted a prudent strategy when granting loans in
the past years. In response to the present economic uncertainties,
the Group will continue to strengthen its risk management
measures, such as increasing the proportion of first mortgage
loans, further tightening the loan-to-value ratio, adopting a
more cautious approach to properties such as shops for securing
mortgage loans, and focusing on high-net-worth customers.

Currently, the implementation of ultra-loose monetary policies by
the world’s major central banks are boosting the global economy
in a low interest rate environment. The Group will continue to
actively explore sources of funds, especially in Southeast Asian
countries.

Regarding our pawn loan business, the Group is currently
developing a mobile app for online pawn loan service, which aims
to make the pawning process simpler and more accessible for
everyone in everywhere. It is believed that such 24/7 service will
allow the Group to cater to the needs of the busy generation, as
well as to promote the Group’s pawn loan business at a lower
cost.
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The Board is pleased to submit this report of the Directors
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 29 February 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are providing secured financing business in
Hong Kong, including pawn loans and mortgage loans.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 29 February 2020 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 66
to 156 of this annual report.

CASH FLOW POSITION

The cash flow position of the Group for the year ended 29
February 2020 is set out and analysed in the consolidated cash
flow statement set out on pages 70 to 71 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

At our Board meeting held on 26 May 2020 (the “Board
Meeting”), our Directors recommended the payment of a final
dividend (the “Final Dividend”) of HK0.87 cents per ordinary
share. In addition, during the Board Meeting, our Directors
also recommended the payment of a special dividend (the
"Special Dividend"”) of HK0.28 cents per ordinary share to the
Shareholders in recognition of their continuous support to the
Company.

The Final Dividend and the Special Dividend, together with the
interim dividend of HK1.07 cents per share declared and paid
during FY2020, represent 40.1% of the profit attributable to the
Shareholders for FY2020.

The Final Dividend and the Special Dividend are subject to
approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the “AGM") and will be paid on Thursday, 20 August
2020 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of our Company at the close of business on Monday, 10
August 2020.

Report of the Directors
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the identity of our Shareholders who are
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM, all duly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with our Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited at 2103B, 21/F, 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 24 July 2020. The register of members of our Company will
be closed from Monday, 27 July 2020 to Thursday, 30 July 2020,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered.

In order to establish the identity of the shareholders of our
Company who are entitled to the Final Dividend and the Special
Dividend, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with our Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars
(HK) Limited at 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point,
Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 4 August
2020. The register of members of our Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 5 August 2020 to Monday, 10 August 2020,
both days inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be
registered.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out on pages 6 to 9 of this
annual report.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of HK$107.4
million (2019: HK$100.8 million) has been transferred to reserves.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 29 February 2020, the aggregate amount of the distributable
reserves of the Company was approximately HK$413.4 million
(2019: approximately HK$142.3 million).

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and note
24 to the consolidated financial statements.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements of plant and equipment of the Group
for the year ended 29 February 2020 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in Company’s share capital for the
year ended 29 February 2020 are set out in note 24(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a written resolution of the then sole
shareholder on 19 February 2013 (the “Adoption Date”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive
to them to promote the success of the business of the Group.
The Board may, at its discretion, grant options pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme to any employee (full-time and part-time),
consultant, adviser, Director (including executive, non-executive
or independent non-executive Director), Substantial Shareholder
(as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)), distributor, contractor,
supplier, agent, customer, business partner or service provider
of any member of the Group whom the Board determines have
contribution or potential contribution to the development and
growth of the Group.

As at 29 February 2020, being the end of FY2020 for the Group:

) a total of 40,000,000 options to subscribe for shares
were available for issue under the Share Option Scheme,
representing approximately 2.1% of the total issued shares
of the Company as at 29 February 2020;

i) an option granted under the Share Option Scheme may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of
grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof;
and

i) the Share Option Scheme will remain in force until 18
February 2023.
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The aggregate number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue from time to time. No option
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes of the Company if this will result in the limit
being exceeded.

The maximum number of shares of the Company issuable upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
as from the Adoption Date (excluding, for this purpose, shares
of the Company issuable upon exercise of options which have
been granted but which have lapsed in accordance with the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of the
Company) must not in aggregate exceed 10% of all shares of
the Company in issue upon 12 March 2013 (the “Listing Date")
(i.e. 40,000,000 shares). The limit of 10% may be refreshed at
any time by approval of the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting provided that the total number of the shares of
the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshed limit.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting, the maximum number of shares underlying the options
granted to each eligible participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1.0%
of the shares of the Company in issue for the time being.

A consideration of HK$1.0 is payable on acceptance of the grant
of an option.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the participants may
subscribe for the shares of the Company on the exercise of an
option at the price determined by the Board provided that it shall
be at least the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date on which an option is offered to a participant, which
must be a business date (the “Offer Date”); (b) the average of
the closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (c) the nominal value
of a share of the Company on the Offer Date.

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E EERAR A

RIRFEBE S R AR BEME B RET S D&
HAB R RTTEE 2 PR 8 R T TR R AR I T 2 11 7] BE 3%
TZARBIBN A TRBEAABTNREHITK
7230% - Wit B K EHR M A BEEZERE BT
SRR AT BISA R AHE T E AL AR AT 81K 1
BBRHE -

BB SRR IR B 8 K AR A E A H AL B A%
BB TR ZAEBRERTEMA] FEITZA
RERHEE (kM E - TRERREEBRETE
AN RMEE A AR AT S B R BB B R 2 BE A%
BETEMN TRITZARRKRG)  AEARZAE
BBARABN -E—=F=A+-"B ([LHEH])
FIEBE%ITIRM 210% (B140,000,0008% k%% ) °
10%fRRERIBERF R AN A AR R AR R K FHE/EME
o EARIE BT 2 AR AT H b B IR Rt
S FRE A BREETEM AT ARF]
pEe NMEBBARARNLELEFRELHE
BEITRR1D 210% ©

BrIEAR R BRI E AR D EHEA& - & B RAMEMR 1218
AHMESAER2BEERR ZERE (BEBTEK
MARTTE Z BIE) 2HERNEE &2 TEEBA
KRB ERDETRND21.0% °

REMPIE 2 BRER B M1.08TT 2B -

RIBBREE 2RETNTEERERZESS
BEEBRRBBARRIED  EZEBRTSERT
REE (QFARARONRA2EEREFHBREZ
H(WARERXR [ENBH)) EBIMEHARE
KRRz BHE (D)ARRRONERZLOHYNE
EEXBEMIAEARERARFHETE: X
(OARBBEMNEL A ZEE-



An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof. The
Share Option Scheme will remain in force until 18 February 2023.

As at the date of this annual report, no options had been granted
or agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 29 February
2020 and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Chart Man

Ms. Chan Mei Fong

Ms. Chan Ying Yu

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion
Mr. Ng Siu Hong

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam On Tai
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
Dr. Yip Ngai

Pursuant to Article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”) and code provision A.4.2
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules, one-third of the Directors will retire by rotation at
the annual general meeting of the Company and will be eligible
for re-election at that meeting. Accordingly, Ms. Chan Ying Yu
and Dr. Yip Ngai will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In addition, pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association,
any Director appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold
office until the next annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting. Accordingly,
Mr. Ng Siu Hong shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and shall be eligible for re-election.

Details of the Directors standing for re-election at the AGM are
set out in the circular sent to the shareholders of the Company
together with this annual report.
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The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 29 February 2020, so far as is known to the Directors or
chief executives of the Company, the following persons other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company had an interest or a
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the

ARBDRESEIFNTESRIELMRANFE3.13
BN FREBIEERE - ARARRAEE LI
HITESYRBIAL

TERRARORAERRG 2EERm R
KRB

RZE-ZEF_A-_+NIB BEEXLARTEET
BABFTA AR RIRBFES LT GRA ([#%
REIB%RAEI]) E336(BETFE 2 ELMATREE - A
TAL (BFXARFREZTHRABRIN) RARF]
B8 R AR (D R B R TUA R

“SFO"):

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name of Shareholder Capacity ordinary shares (Note 2)
BaERaS T
RRATE/ Mg E4n) LmkEE (fizt2)
Kwan Lik Holding Limited Beneficial interest 1,297,087,024 66.91%
(Note 1) (H#i 1) Enftan
Kwan Lik (BVI) Limited (Note 1) (ffa1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,297,087,024 66.91%
REEEE 2 B
TMF (Cayman) Limited (Note 1) (#z1) Trustee 1,297,087,024 66.91%
(Note 3) (H1i#3) SN
Ms. Chan Nga Yu (Note 3) Discretionary trust interests 1,297,087,024 66.91%
BRI L (M73) WE GRS
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.76%
B AKRFA R
Ms. Chan Kit Yu (Note 3) Discretionary trust interests 1,297,087,024 66.91%
2Bt (M73) WE GRS
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.76%
B ARRFA R
Ms. Mui Hang Sin (Note 3) Discretionary trust interests 1,297,087,024 66.91%
BBz (Me3) WE GRS
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.76%
B ARRFA R
Great Roc Capital Limited (Note 4) (ff/i#4)  Beneficial interest 271,586,029 14.01%
EnfEn
Mr. Yan Kam Cheong (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 271,586,029 14.01%

REE KL (Hit4)

NEEEE s
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Notes:

1. The 1,297,087,024 shares is held by Kwan Lik Holding Limited,
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kwan Lik (BVI) Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of TMF (Cayman) Limited.

2. There were 1,938,468,406 shares of the Company in issue as at 29
February 2020.

3. These 1,297,087,024 shares were owned by a discretionary trust
whose trustee, TMF (Cayman) Limited, indirectly owns the entire
issued share capital of Kwan Lik Holding Limited. Ms. Chan Nga Yu,
Ms. Chan Kit Yu, Ms. Mui Hang Sin, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Mr,
Chan Chart Man, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr.
Chan Kai Kow Macksion are the discretionary beneficiaries of the
trust.

4. Great Roc Capital Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Yan Kam Cheong
who is the substantial Shareholder of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 29 February 2020, there was no
other person so far known to the Directors or chief executives of
the Company, other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company as having an interest or a short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 29 February 2020, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company and their respective
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which he was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or were required
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, are set out below:
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Interest in the shares of the Company RAEDQFRG 2R
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of Director Nature of interest ordinary shares (Note 2)
AR B DL
EoE Y EmE TRRER (KrzE2)
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Note 1) Discretionary trust interests 1,297,087,024 66.91%
PREAZ L& (BYaET) [
Beneficial interest 53,477,564 2.76%
EnEn
Mr. Chan Chart Man (Note 1) Discretionary trust interests 1,297,087,024 66.91%
BREESCKRE (KYaET) RiEfE TR
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.76%
g A RFERFE 2=
Ms. Chan Mei Fong (Note 1) Discretionary trust interests 1,297,087,024 66.91%
PRES L L (K1) 5 (ErEEm
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.76%
Hifh A HFRFA 2w
Ms. Chan Ying Yu (Note 1) Discretionary trust interests 1,297,087,024 66.91%
PREm AT (MYaET) IS5t
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.76%
it A HERA 2=
Notes: PR

1. These 1,297,087,024 shares were owned by a discretionary trust
whose trustee, TMF (Cayman) Limited, indirectly owns the entire
issued share capital of Kwan Lik Holding Limited. Ms. Chan Nga Yu,
Ms. Chan Kit Yu, Ms. Mui Hang Sin, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Mr.
Chan Chart Man, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr.
Chan Kai Kow Macksion are the discretionary beneficiaries of the
trust.

2. There were 1,938,468,406 shares of the Company in issue as at 29
February 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 29 February 2020, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which he was
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or were required pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 29
February 2020 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate; and none of the Directors,
or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no other transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates was a
party and in which any director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS
During the year under review, no Directors have interests in any

business which directly or indirectly competes, or is likely to
compete with the business of the Group.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Board has the general power of determining the Directors’
remuneration, subject to authorisation of the Shareholders at
the annual general meeting each year. The remuneration of the
executive Directors is subject to review by the remuneration
committee, and their remuneration is determined with reference
including but not limited to salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors.
As for the non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors, their remuneration is determined by the Board
upon recommendation from the remuneration committee. Details
of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 10 and
the five highest paid individuals are set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years and shall continue
thereafter unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the
service agreements.
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Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years and shall continue thereafter
unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the letters of
appointment.

Saved as disclosed herein, no Director proposed for re-election
at the AGM has a service contract with members of the Group
that is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during FY2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’'s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

The information in respect of the revenue from rendering of
services attributable to the major customers of the Group during
the financial year is as follows:
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Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company (to
the best of the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in these
major customers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Reference is made to the Company’'s announcement dated 18
June 2020. As at the date of the announcement and this annual
report, the public float of the Company has fallen below 25% of
the total issued share capital of the Company held by the public
as prescribed by Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.
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The management of the Company is in the process of working out
feasible measures to restore the public float to the level as required
under the Listing Rules. The Company will make further announcement
relating to the restoration of the public float as and where appropriate.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Kwan Lik Holding Limited, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Mr. Chan
Chart Man, Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Nga
Yu, Ms. Chan Kit Yu and Ms. Mui Hang Sin entered into a deed
of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-competition”) in favour
of the Company on 21 February 2013 pursuant to which they
have undertaken to the Company (for itself and for the benefit of
its subsidiaries) that it or he or she would not, and would procure
that its or his or her associates (other than any member of our
Group) would not, directly or indirectly, carry on, participate or be
interested or engaged in or acquire or hold (in each case whether
as a shareholder, partner, principal, agent, director, employee or
otherwise) any business which is or may be in competition with
the current businesses of the Group during the restricted period.

Ms. Chan Nga Yu, Ms. Chan Kit Yu, Ms. Mui Hang Sin, Mr. Chan Kai Ho
Edward, Mr. Chan Chart Man, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu
and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion are the beneficiaries of a discretionary
trust whose trustee, TMF (Cayman) Limited, indirectly owns the entire
issued share capital of Kwan Lik Holding Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

An annual confirmation has been received from each of the
parties to the Deed of Non-competition on compliance with each
of their respective undertaking thereunder.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition by the parties to
the Deed of Non-competition and confirmed that the Deed of
Non-competition is fully complied with and duly enforced during
the year ended 29 February 2020 and up to the date of this
report.

Report of the Directors
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions of the Group constituted continuing
connected transactions (the “Continuing Connected
Transactions”) for the Group for the year ended 29 February

2020:

Tenancy agreements

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

On 7 June 2018, for the purpose of operating one of our
pawnshops, Hing Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited (“Hing Wah
HK"), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a tenancy agreement (“Hing Wah Tenancy
Agreement”) with Kwan Chart (Holding) Company Limited
(“Kwan Chart Holding”), which is owned as to 90% and
10% by Mr. Chan Chart Man, an executive Director and
by his spouse, Ms. Mui Hang Sin, a substantial shareholder
of the Company, respectively. Pursuant to the Hing Wah
Tenancy Agreement, Kwan Chart Holding shall lease a
premises to Hing Wah HK for a term of two years from 8
June 2018 to 7 June 2020 at a monthly rent of HK$80,000.

On 7 June 2018, for the purpose of operating one of our
pawnshops, Wai Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited (“Wai Wah
HK"), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a tenancy agreement (“Wai Wah Tenancy
Agreement”) with Mr. Chan Chart Man, an executive
Director. Pursuant to the Wai Wah Tenancy Agreement, Mr.
Chan Chart Man shall lease a premises to Wai Wah HK for
a term of two years from 8 June 2018 to 7 June 2020 at a
monthly rent of HK$90,000.

On 7 June 2018, for the purpose of operating our head
office, Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited (“Oi Wah HK")
entered into a tenancy agreement (“Oi Wah Tenancy
Agreement”) with Kwan Chart Estate Company Limited
(“"Kwan Chart Estate”), which is owned as to 95% and
5% by Mr. Chan Chart Man, an executive Director and by
his spouse, Ms. Mui Hang Sin, a substantial shareholder of
the Company, respectively. Pursuant to the Oi Wah Tenancy
Agreement, Kwan Chart Estate shall lease a premises to Oi
Wah HK for a term of two years from 31 May 2018 to 30
May 2020 at a monthly rent of HK$55,000.
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Annual review of the Continuing Connected Transactions

Although all the Continuing Connected Transactions are fully
exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules,
these transactions have been reviewed by the independent non-
executive Directors who have confirmed that the Continuing
Connected Transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) either on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to (or from) independent third parties; and
(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, the significant related party transactions
that did not constitute connected transactions under the Listing
Rules made during the year were disclosed in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Appropriate Directors’ liability insurance has been arranged to
indemnify the Directors for liabilities arising out of corporate
activities. The coverage and the sum insured under the policy are
reviewed annually. Further, the Company’s Articles of Association
provide that Directors are entitled to be indemnified out of the
Company’s assets against claims from third parties in respect of
certain liabilities.

The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance
cover in respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Additional information of business review is set out on pages 11
to 20 under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report, which forms part of this report of
the Directors.
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AUDITORS

KPMG has resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect
from 25 September 2019. The Board has appointed SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited as the new auditor of the Company with effect
from 26 September 2019 to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of KPMG.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 29 February 2020 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited and a resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no change in the auditor
of the Company during the past three years.

By order of the Board

Chan Kai Ho Edward
Chairman

Hong Kong,
26 May 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high
standards of corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of its business and the Shareholders. The Company
has adopted the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. The corporate governance principles of the
Company emphasise a quality board, sound internal controls, and
transparency and accountability to all Shareholders.

Throughout FY2020 and up to the date of this annual report,
our Company applied the principles in the Corporate Governance
Code and complied with the Code Provisions, save for the
deviation from Code Provision A.2.1 and Code Provision A.6.7
which is explained below.

Code Provision A.2.1 requires that the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward,
an executive Director, currently holds both positions. Mr. Chan
Kai Ho Edward has been the key leadership figure of our Group
and has been primarily involved in the formulation of business
strategies and determination of the overall direction of our Group.
He has also been chiefly responsible for our Group’s operations
as he directly supervises other executive Directors and senior
management of our Group. Taking into account the continuation
of the implementation of our Group’s business plans, our Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) consider that
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward is the best candidate for both positions
and the present arrangements are beneficial and in the best
interests of our Company and our Shareholders as a whole.

Code Provision A.6.7 requires independent non-executive
Directors and non-executive Directors to attend general meetings
to gain and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. At the annual general meeting held on 29 July
2019, a non-executive Director was absent due to his other prior
engagement.

In addition, to demonstrate the Company’s continued commitment
to high standards of corporate governance, the Board adopted a
board diversity policy in September 2013 to comply with a new
Code Provisions on board diversity. With the adoption of our
board diversity policy, the Company has expanded the duty scope
of the Nomination Committee to include the monitoring of the
implementation of the policy.

The Directors will review the Company’s corporate governance
policies and compliance with the Code Provisions from time to
time.
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DIRECTORS
The Board

The Board, led by the chairman of the Company, is responsible
for leadership and control of the Company and overseeing the
Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The
Board has delegated to the senior management of the Company
the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management
and operation of the Group. In addition, the Board has established
Board committees and has delegated to these Board committees
various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference.

The Board reserved its decision for all major matters of the
Company, including: approving and monitoring all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

Daily management and administration functions are delegated to
the management. The Board delegated various responsibilities to
the senior management of the Company. These responsibilities
include implementing decisions of the Board, directing and
coordinating day-to-day operation and management of the
Company in accordance with the management strategies and
plans approved by the Board, formulating and monitoring the
operation and production plans and budgets, and supervising and
monitoring the control systems.
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For the year ended 29 February 2020, the Board held six formal
meetings. Attendance of individual Directors at the Board meeting
for the year ended 29 February 2020 is as follows:
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Board Meeting

Annual General Meeting

Name of Director EEHR EEEeE BRREERE
Executive Directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Note 1) BRES S (1)

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (EEFITHAEE) 6/6 11

Mr. Chan Chart Man (Note 1) BRI A (BfaET) 4/6 11
Ms. Chan Ying Yu (Note 1) BRIt (fatr) 6/6 171
Ms. Chan Mei Fong (Note 1) BREF 2L (Ha1) 4/6 171
Non-executive Directors: FHITEE
Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion (Note 1) BRERERSEAE (HiaET) 4/6 0/1
Mr. Ng Siu Hong hBRELE 1/4 0/0 (Note 2) (Ht5t2)
Independent non-executive Directors: BUHNTEE:
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert ZIEHE L 4/6 11
Dr. Yip Ngai 2RET 4/6 1/1
Mr. Lam On Tai MERTE 4/6 11
Note: Kzt -

1. Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong
and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion are siblings. Mr. Chan Chart Man
is their father.

2. Mr. Ng Siu Hong did not attend the annual general meeting held on
29 July 2019 as he was not appointed as a Director until 1 August
2019.

For the year ended 29 February 2020, apart from the meetings
of the Board, consent/approval from the Board had also been
obtained by written resolutions on a number of matters.

For the year ended 29 February 2020, one general meeting of the
Company was held.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, an executive Director, currently holds
both the positions of chairman and chief executive officer. Mr.
Chan Kai Ho Edward has been the key leadership figure of the
Group, who has been primarily involved in formulation of business
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strategies and determination of the overall direction of the Group.
He has also been chiefly responsible for the Group’s operations
as he directly supervises other executive Directors and senior
management of the Group. Taking into account the continuation
of the implementation of the Group’s business plans, the Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) consider that
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward is the best candidate for both positions
and the present arrangements are beneficial and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Board Composition

Currently, the Board comprises nine Directors, including four
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The current composition of
the Board is as follows:

REREBEMBTERRAEEGREERE  ®K
N—ERARBZEREEREA - ZEIEBHEASE
BRI 2EEE EF (BREBUFNTES)
R BREEAER/ZMERL 2 REAE MR
RHUARARRRRRERBEN UTEREZERN
5o

EEeCAK

EETCERANEEFENK BENEHITES W
BIMITEEN —RBUIIRTEZT -EECRE
KRN

Membership of Board Committee(s)
E=ZZEEHE

Executive Directors:

HITEF

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
PREASRSCE (F R FITEAAEL)

Mr. Chan Chart Man
BREE ST 4

Ms. Chan Ying Yu
PREEH 22+

Ms. Chan Mei Fong
BRIEF L+

Non-executive Directors:
FEPITESE :

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion
BREAER A&

Mr. Ng Siu Hong
RARTE

Independent non-executive Directors:
HUIFHITEE

Mr. Lam On Tai

M RAELE

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
Z2IHIE L

Dr. Yip Ngai
ERxiEt
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Member of Remuneration Committee
HFHMEZBEENE
Member of Nomination Committee

RAZEEKE

Chairman of Remuneration Committee

FNEEeERE

Member of Audit Committee
EZELBEEKE

Member of Nomination Committee
REEBEKE

Chairman of Nomination Committee
RELEEER

Member of Audit Committee
EZEZBEEKE

Member of Remuneration Committee
HHNEZEENE

Chairman of Audit Committee
EZLZEEER



Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of
directors of a listed issuer must include at least three independent
non-executive directors. In addition, pursuant to Rules 3.10A and
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, every listed issuer is required to have
such number of independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-third of the Board, and at least one of whom must
have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
was admitted as an associate of The Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants (currently known as Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants) in February 1987 and became
an associate of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (currently
known as HKICPA) in September 1988.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed
the independence of all the independent non-executive Directors
and considered that all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 55 to 58
of this annual report. Save as disclosed on pages 55 to 58 of
this annual report, the Board members do not have any family,
financial or business relationship with each other.

The list of Directors has been published on the website of the
Company and the website of the Stock Exchange, and is disclosed
in all corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant
to the Listing Rules from time to time.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company, and each of the non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company. Such term is for an initial term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date and is subject to
the re-appointment of each of the Directors by the Company at
an annual general meeting upon retirement.

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that any
Director appointed by the Board (i) to fill a casual vacancy in
the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall be subject to re-election at
such meeting; and (ii) as an addition to the Board shall hold office
until the next annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election.
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In addition, every Director should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. At every annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
according to Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company.

Responsibilities of Directors

All the Directors received an induction on appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operation
of the Group and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements. The Directors will also be updated from time to
time on the business development and operation plans of the
Company.

In compliance with Code Provision A.6.5, the Company will
arrange for, and provide funds for, all the Directors to participate
in continuous professional development organised in the form of
in-house training, seminars or other appropriate courses to keep
them refresh of their knowledge, skill and understanding of the
Group and its business or to update their skills and knowledge on
the latest development or changes in the relevant statutes, the
Listing Rules and corporate governance practices. The Company
will also update the Directors of any material changes in the
Listing Rules and corporate governance practices from time to
time.

Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1, a non-executive director should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.
Each of our non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years and
shall continue thereafter unless terminated in accordance with the
terms of the letters of appointment.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the standard set out in Appendix 10
(Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers) (the “Model Code”) to the Listing Rules, in relation to
the dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiries with all Directors, each Director
has confirmed that he/she has complied with the standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year ended 29 February 2020
and up to the date of this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on
19 February 2013 with effect from the Listing Date with specific
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.
With the adoption of the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) to comply with the Code Provisions, the terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee were revised on 23
May 2014. According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Board
should be composed of directors with diversed skills, knowledge,
gender, age, cultural and educational background or professional
experience. The Board will review such measurable objectives
from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and assess the
progress made towards achieving those objectives. The Nomination
Committee considered the Board composition was in compliance
with the Board Diversity Policy.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill
vacancies on the Board and senior management. The existing
members of the Nomination Committee include Dr. Leung Shiu Ki
Albert and Mr. Lam On Tai, both are independent non-executive
Directors, and Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, an executive Director.
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the
reporting year. During the aforesaid meetings, the Nomination
Committee (i) recommended the appointment of Mr. Ng Siu Hong
as a non-executive Director of the Company; and (i) proposed
to the Board to re-elect the retiring Directors, namely Ms. Chan
Ying Yu, Mr. Ng Siu Hong and Dr. Yip Ngai, at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The Nomination Committee reviewed
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and the structure, size and diversity of the Board. Please refer to
the table below for the attendance record of the meetings of the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 29 February 2020:
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Directors Number of Meetings held
B= HE,BIERRE
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
PRENE LT (JEEZESTE) 2/2
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward
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Mr. Lam On Tai
ML REE 2/2
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Group has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which specifies the procedures, process and criteria of
the nomination of Directors.

Selection criteria for nomination and appointment of
Directors

When making any recommendations in relation to the
appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-
appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board, the
Nomination Committee shall consider, but without limitation, the
following factors when evaluating the suitability of the proposed
candidate:

° competence, experience, skills, expertise, education and
professional qualifications, background and other personal
attributes of the candidate that can best complement and
expand the skill set and expertise of the Board as a whole;

o reputation for integrity;

. availability of the candidate, as to whether the candidate
can devote sufficient time and effort to properly discharge
his duties as a Director; and

. other factors as the Nomination Committee or the Board
may deem relevant.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent
non-executive director, he or she must comply with the
independence requirements under the Listing Rules. Such
candidate shall be independent in judgment and character, and
shall be able to act in the best interests of the Shareholders.

Nomination procedure and process

The Nomination Policy sets out the procedure and process in
relation to the nomination of Directors as follows:

. members of the Nomination Committee or the Board shall
identify, nominate and invite suitable candidates;

o the Nomination Committee shall determine the suitable
candidate for appointment in accordance with the selection
criteria set out in the Nomination Policy and the Board
Diversity Policy;

o in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors,
the Nomination Committee shall review and evaluate the
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candidate’s overall performance and contributions, and
make recommendations to the Board and/or Shareholders
for consideration in respect of his/her re-election in general
meetings; and

o for any individual that is nominated by a Shareholder
for election as a director in the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
shall evaluate such candidate with reference to the criteria
stipulated above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

The Nomination Policy is subject to review by the Board from
time to time to ensure its effectiveness and compliance with good
corporate governance practice and regulatory requirements.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established
on 19 February 2013 with effect from the Listing Date with
specific written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management, determine on behalf
of the Board specific remuneration packages and conditions of
employment for the Directors and senior management, assess
performance of the executive Directors and approve the terms of
executive Directors’ service contracts. The existing members of the
Remuneration Committee include Mr. Lam On Tai and Dr. Leung
Shiu Ki Albert, both are independent non-executive Directors, and
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, an executive Director. Mr. Lam On Tai is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the website of the Company and the website of the
Stock Exchange.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the
reporting year. During the meeting, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed the Directors’ salaries and other allowances and the
remuneration of the senior management and assessment system.
Please refer to the table below for the attendance record of the
meeting of the Remuneration Committee during the year ended
29 February 2020:

FHZEENBEFEANBRIT - REZ -FTHEE
ERELENESTHFMREMERARSREEE
MEEZHIE - TRENEENEBE_FT_FTF_A
“tHARLEFEHEFHNEZESeR 2ok

Directors

E=x

Attendance/
Number of Meeting held

HEBITEERE

Mr. Lam On Tai (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)

NEREE (FNEESEE/E)
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward

= ES A
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert

RICHEIE L+

REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the Code Provisions, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management (as

171
171

171

EREEEBKERAEEE D 2 H M

RIETAGXER 1SR BRESEXE (Am [E
EREAEEE| - HRML) BE-S-FF A

described under the section “Directors and Senior Management”) =t/ R IFFERBEEH 2 HEHTI0T
by band for the year ended 29 February 2020 is set out as
follows:
Number of
individuals
Remuneration band FrifenE A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001, 7% 1,500,000/ 7T 2
Audit Committee EREES

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 19
February 2013 with effect from the Listing Date with specific
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, amongst other
things, to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
the internal control systems of the Group. The existing members
of the Audit Committee comprise Dr. Yip Ngai, Dr. Leung Shiu Ki
Albert and Mr. Lam On Tai, all of whom are independent non-
executive Directors. Dr. Yip Ngai is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.
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This annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the website of the Company and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the reporting
year. During these meetings, the Audit Committee confirmed
the appointment of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited and fixed its
remuneration, and reviewed the procedures of internal control
of the Group. The Audit Committee was of the view that the
procedures of internal control of the Group were effective. The
Audit Committee also reviewed the interim and annual results of
the Group for the financial year and the auditors’ report prepared
by the external auditors in relation to accounting matters and any
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material findings during the audit. The Audit Committee was of Z—AZ+NBEIEFEHEEZEZE LR 20k
the opinion that such financial statements and report complied
with the applicable accounting policy standards and requirements
and that adequate disclosures have been made. Please refer to
the table below for the attendance record of the meetings of the
Audit Committee during the year ended 29 February 2020:

Attendance/
Directors Number of Meetings held
= HiEBITERRE
Dr. Yip Ngai (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
EREBL (FEZE2TE) 2/2
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
RKEE L 212
Mr. Lam On Tai
ML FEE 212

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for, amongst other things, the
development and review of the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Group and monitoring the compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, and reviewing the corporate governance
compliance with the Code Provisions and disclosure in the annual
report.

In order to comply with the requirements of Code Provision A.6.5,
all Directors participated in training in relation to continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contributions to the Board remains
informed. The Board has also reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance practices and this corporate governance report.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the
year ended 29 February 2020 is summarised below:

BE-T-_TFE_A-_FTNALFERE JTESFME
ZAE R IE s a0 T -

Attending or participating in seminars/conferences/

Names of Directors

EEHA

corporate events or reading regulatory updates/

journals relating to director’s duties
HESSMHANE, & LEITHR
MEFHESRECENEEEN BT

Executive Directors
HITEE

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward
FRERR So

Mr. Chan Chart Man
FRE ST

Ms. Chan Ying Yu

PR S 30 22 &

Ms. Chan Mei Fong
PREDS 2t

Non-executive Directors
IERTEE

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion
PR RN RS

Mr. Ng Siu Hong
hABREAE

Independent non-executive Directors
BUIFHMITEE

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert

ZIHEE L

Dr. Yip Ngai

EREL

Mr. Lam On Tai

ML ZR It

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

Financial results of the Group are announced in a timely manner
in accordance with all statutory requirements, particularly the
timeframe stipulated in Rules 13.49(1) and (6) of the Listing Rules.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
29 February 2020. Currently, the Company’s external auditors are
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (the “Auditors”).

For the year ended 29 February 2020, the fees paid or payable by
the Company to the Auditors amounted to approximately HK$0.8
million, which was all for audit services.

The statement of the Auditors about their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 59 to 65 of this
annual report.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board recognizes its responsibility for maintaining an adequate
and sound enterprise risk management and internal control
system and through the Audit Committee and, if necessary, an
external firm of qualified accountants to provide internal control
services, conducts reviews on the effectiveness of these systems
at least annually, covering material controls, including financial,
operational, compliance and strategic risk control functions. The
Board understands that such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted annual review of both design and
implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates any
material issues identified to the Board.

During the year under review, the Company also appointed
an independent professional consultancy firm, BT Corporate
Governance Limited (“BTCGL", formerly known as “Corporate
Governance Professional Limited”) to

o assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

o independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures
as recommended by BTCGL to enhance the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of the
Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the findings and
recommendations of BTCGL as well as the comments of the Audit
Committee, the Board considered the internal control and risk
management systems effective and adequate.
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Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group reviewed its enterprise risk management framework
in FY2020. While the Board has the overall responsibility to
ensure that sound and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and implementing an
internal control system to manage all kinds of risks faced by the
Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. Our
risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk
Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the Board
and management to manage the risks of the Group effectively.
The Board receives regular reports through the Audit Committee
that oversights risk management and internal audit functions.

Principal Risks

In the reporting year, the following principal risks of the Group
were identified and classified into strategic risks, operational risks,
financial risks and compliance risks.

AEBHEERBEBER
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Risk Areas Principal Risks

BB & FERM

Compliance Risks Non-compliance with updated disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules
aRERE BR EMRRISRER KO RIIRE

Operational Risks
EERR

Business interruption caused by Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-2019)
51201957 AR5 2578 T 28 B 7%

Failure to detect unlawful properties due to procedural error, fraud and misconduct
committed by employees or third parties

AR - EEE=

No significant risk identified
W B E AR

Financial Risks

Bt

Strategic Risk

REEE R Fo b EE T35 8 2K 80 LR

TEGERATRTEREA L IBEE

Risk of downturn in the real estate market

Default risk under Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-2019)
FH2019B MM SHRMEBEFELHNER
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Our Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three-layer” corporate governance
structure with operational management and controls performed
by operations management, coupled with risk management
monitoring carried out by the finance team and independent
internal audit outsourced to and conducted by BTCGL. The Group
maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified major risks
of the Group. The risk register provides the Board, the Audit
Committee, and management with a profile of its major risks and
records management’s action taken to mitigate the relevant risks.
Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood of
occurrence and potential impact upon the Group. The risk register
is updated by management as the risk owners with addition of
new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if applicable, at least
annually, after the annual risk evaluation has been performed. This
review process can ensure that the Group proactively manages
the risks faced by it in the sense that all risk related parties have
access to the risk register and are aware of and alert to those
risks in their area of responsibility so that they can take follow-up
action in an efficient manner.

The Group’'s risk management activities are performed by
management on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management framework will be evaluated at least
annually, and periodic management meeting is held to update the
progress of risk monitoring efforts. Management is committed
to ensure that risk management forms part of the daily business
operation processes in order to align risk management with
corporate goals in an effective manner.

The Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature and
complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more cost
effective to appoint external independent professionals to perform
internal audit function for the Group in order to meet its needs.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s system of internal controls
and risk management annually and further enhance the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems as appropriate.

The Group has established internal control procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as Part XIVA
of the SFO. The internal control mechanism includes information
flow and reporting processes, confidentiality arrangements,
disclosure procedures, and staff training arrangements, etc.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

In general, the Board oversees the Company’s strategic
development and determines the objectives, strategies and policies
of the Group. The Board also monitors and controls operating
and financial performance and sets appropriate policies for risk
management in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. The
Board delegates the implementation of strategies and day-to-day
operation of the Group to the management.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang, the company secretary appointed by the
Board and an employee of the Company, in the opinion of the
Board, possesses the necessary qualification and experience, and is
capable of performing the functions of the company secretary. The
Company will provide fund for Mr. Cheng to take not less than 15
hours of appropriate professional training in each financial year as
required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”). Under the Dividend Policy, in circumstances that the
Group is profitable and without affecting the normal operations
and business of the Group, the Company may consider declaring
and paying dividends to its shareholders.

When considering whether to declare any dividends and
determining the dividend amount, the Board will take into
consideration, inter alia, the following factors: (i) the financial
position of the Group; (ii) the capital and debt level of the Group;
(iii) the general market conditions; (iv) any cash requirements for
any future development plans of the Group; (v) any restrictions on
dividend payouts imposed by any of the Group’s lenders; and (vi)
any other relevant factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

The payment of the dividends by the Company will also be subject
to any restrictions imposed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands as well as the articles of association of the Company.

The Board endeavors to strike a balance between the
Shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management with
a sustainable dividend policy. The Board will from time to time
review the dividend policy and may exercise at its absolute and
sole discretion to update, amend, and/or modify the Dividend
Policy at any time as the Board deems fit and necessary. There is
no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount
for any specific reporting period.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Effective Communication

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining a clear,
timely and effective communication with the Shareholders
and investors of the Company. The Board also recognises that
effective communication with the Company’s investors is critical
in establishing investor confidence and to attract new investors.
Therefore, the Group is committed to maintaining a high degree
of transparency to ensure the Shareholders and the investors
of the Company will receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and
timely information of the Group through the publication of
annual reports, interim reports, announcements and circulars. The
Company also publishes all corporate communications on the
website of the Company.

In respect of each matter to be considered at the annual general
meetings and extraordinary general meetings, including the re-
election of Directors, a separate resolution will be proposed by the
Chairman.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2, the Chairman of the Board, the
chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, or in their absence, another member of
the relevant committee or an appointed representative, will attend
the forthcoming annual general meeting to answer questions of
Shareholders.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2, the Company will invite
representatives of the Auditors to attend the forthcoming annual
general meeting to answer Shareholders’ questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

Shareholders’ Rights

1. Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, extraordinary general meetings shall be convened
on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the company secretary of the Company for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
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of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Raising Enquiries

Shareholders may direct their queries about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment
of dividend to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited:

Address: 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road
North Point
Hong Kong
Email: srinfo.hk@boardroomlimited.com
Tel: (852) 21531688
Fax: (852) 30205058

Shareholders may raise enquiries in respect of the Company
at the following designated contact, correspondence address,
email address and enquiry hotlines of the Company:

Attention: Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang
(Company Secretary)

Address: Rooms 2302-2303, Kwan Chart Tower,
No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

Email: brian.cheng@oiwah.com.hk

Tel: (852) 28332002

Fax: (852) 28919831

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

(i)  Proposal for election of a person other than a Director
as a Director:
Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association,
a Shareholder who wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director for election to the office of
Director at any general meeting should lodge (i) notice
in writing of the intention to propose that person for
election as a Director; and (i) notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected, at either (a) the
head office of the Company in Hong Kong at Rooms
2302-2303, Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, or (b) the registration office
of the Company in Hong Kong at 2103B, 21/F, 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong. The period
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(ii)

for lodgment of the notices mentioned above will
commence no earlier than the day after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting and the minimum
length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least seven days.

Other proposals:

If a Shareholder wishes to make other proposals (the
“Proposal(s)”) at a general meeting, he/she may
lodge a written request, duly signed, at the head office
of the Company in Hong Kong at Rooms 2302-2303,
Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong marked for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

The identity of the Shareholder and his/her request
will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong share
registrar and upon confirmation by the share registrar
that the request is proper and in order, and is made
by a Shareholder, the Board will in its sole discretion
decide whether the Proposal may be included in the
agenda for the general meeting to be set out in the
notice of meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders
for consideration of the Proposal raised by the
Shareholder concerned at the general meeting varies
according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 20 clear business days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval in an annual general
meeting of the Company.

(2) Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval by way of a special
resolution in an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company.

(3) Notice of not less than 14 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval by way of an ordinary
resolution in an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company.
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Constitutional Documents

Pursuant to a special resolution of the Shareholders passed on 19
February 2013, the Amended and Restated Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company were adopted with effect
from the Listing Date. During the year ended 29 February 2020,
there was no significant change in the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company.

The Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of

Association of the Company are available on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the website of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (BREXZ), aged 48, is our chairman,
executive Director and chief executive officer. He is also a director
of all the subsidiaries within the Group and the authorised
representative of the Company. Mr. Chan joined our Group in
2000 and is responsible for our Group’s overall management,
strategic planning and business development. He has over 19
years of experience in business management and pawn loan
business. Mr. Chan is currently the chairman of The Hong Kong
and Kowloon Pawnbrokers’ Association Limited (B if¥mehd
fR/27]) and honorary chairman of Macau General Chamber of
Pawnbrokers (EBFIEMZEER ). Mr. Chan has been the vice-
president of Hong Kong Property Finance Association Limited
since March 2014. Mr. Chan obtained a degree of Bachelor of
Engineering in Civil Engineering from the City University, London,
United Kingdom in July 1994. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan
Chart Man and the brother of Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan
Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion, all of whom are our
Directors.

Mr. Chan Chart Man (BR%X), aged 89, is our founder and
executive Director. He is also a director of each of Oi Wah Holding
Limited (“Oi Wah Holding"”), Oi Wah HK, Wai Wah HK and Hing
Wah HK. Mr. Chan is responsible for advising on overall strategic
planning and business development of our Group. Mr. Chan
established the business of our Group in 1975 and has played
a significant role in the growth of our business. He has over 44
years of experience in finance and pawn loan business. Mr. Chan
is the father of Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms.
Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion, all of whom are
our Directors.

Ms. Chan Mei Fong (FR3£35), aged 50, is our executive Director
and chief operating officer. Ms Chan is also a director of Oi
Wah HK, Oi Wah Holding, Oi Wah Enterprises Limited ("Oi
Wah Enterprises”), Oi Wah Property Credit Limited (“Oi Wah
Property”), Dream City Credit Limited (formerly known as Oi Wah
Finance Limited) (“Dream City Credit”), Oi Wah Credit Limited (" Oi
Wah Credit”), Oi Wah Mortgage Limited (“Oi Wah Mortgage”)
and Oi Wah Pawnshop Limited (“Oi Wah Pawnshop”). Ms.
Chan joined our Group in 2007 and is responsible for the overall
operations of our Group's business. Ms. Chan obtained a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Town and Country Planning from the University
of the West of England, Bristol, United Kingdom in September
1996. Ms. Chan also obtained a diploma in Gemmology and Gem
Diamond diploma from The Gemmological Association and Gem
Testing Laboratory of Great Britain in January 2006 and January
2007, respectively. Ms. Chan is a fellow of The Gemmological
Association of Great Britain. Ms. Chan is the daughter of Mr.
Chan Chart Man and the sister of Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms.
Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion, all of whom are
our Directors.
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Ms. Chan Ying Yu (BRZHI), aged 54, is our executive Director.
She is also a director of Oi Wah HK, Oi Wah Holding, Oi Wah
Enterprises, Oi Wah Property, Oi Wah Credit, Dream City Credit,
Oi Wah Mortgage and Oi Wah Pawnshop and the authorised
representative of the Company. Ms. Chan joined our Group in
2000 and is responsible for overseeing our administration and
human resources matters. Ms. Chan obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree in Hotel and Restaurant Management from the
Middlesex University, United Kingdom in July 1995 and was
elected as an associate of the Hotel and Catering International
Management Association in October 1995. Ms. Chan is the
daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man and the sister of Mr. Chan Kai
Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Mei Fong and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion,
all of whom are our Directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion (FRE(ZR), aged 64, was appointed
as our non-executive Director on 19 February 2013. Mr. Chan is
a lawyer with 34 years of experience in general practice. He has
passed solicitor qualifying examinations in Hong Kong and was
admitted as a Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in March
1984 and has been a partner in Chow C.L. & Macksion Chan
since 2001. Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Pure
Mathematics from The University of Calgary, Canada in June 1978.
Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Chart Man and the brother of
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Mei Fong and Ms. Chan Ying
Yu, all of whom are our Directors.

Mr. Ng Siu Hong (fE#8 ), aged 39, was appointed as our non-
executive Director on 1 August 2019. Mr. Ng has over 11 years
of experience in financial investment and business management.
He currently serves as a responsible officer and managing director
of Kingkey Securities Group Limited (previously known as Great
Roc Capital Securities Limited), a licensed corporation which
is entitled to conduct type 1 (dealing in securities) and type 4
(advising on securities) regulated activities under the SFO, as well
as a responsible officer of Kingkey Asset Management Limited,
a licensed corporation which is entitled to conduct type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the SFO. Prior to joining
Kingkey Securities Group Limited, Mr. Ng acted as an account
manager at UOB Kay Hian (Hong Kong) Limited from October
2007 to May 2008, and served as a vice president at Phillip
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited from June 2008 to April 2013. He
was awarded a Bachelor’s degree in Economics and Finance from
City University of Hong Kong in 2002 and an Executive Master
of Business Administration degree from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 2019.
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Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam On Tai (%% %), aged 48, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 1 April 2017. He has more
than 22 years of experience in banking and securities industry, in
which over 19 years of experience was accumulated in advising
on corporate finance relating to various listing and restructuring
transactions. Mr. Lam currently serves as the managing director of
Red Solar Capital Limited (412 & ZABRAF]). Mr Lam received
his diploma in general business management from the Lingnan
College (38F &%) (now known as the Lingnan University (587
KE) in Hong Kong in November 1994, and his master’s degree
in business administration from the University of Sheffield in
the United Kingdom in December 1996. He also obtained his
bachelor’'s degree in laws from the University of Wolverhampton
in the United Kingdom in July 1998 through a distance learning
course. Mr. Lam served as a non-executive director of Jiyi
Household International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
Code: 1495) from June 2015 to November 2018.

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert (¥k#), aged 71, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 19 February 2013.
Dr. Leung served as the company secretary of Union Medical
Healthcare Limited which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 2138) until September 2016. Dr. Leung
also served as an independent non-executive director of Nga Chun
Holdings Company Limited and Skyway Securities Group Limited,
which are both listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 1462 and 1141) until February 2016 and November
2015 respectively. Dr. Leung also served as an independent non-
executive director of Ruifeng Petroleum Chemical Holdings Ltd,
which is listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
8096) until October 2015. Dr. Leung was also an assistant vice
president in Citicorp International Limited from 1987 to 1992. Dr.
Leung was admitted as an associate of The Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants (now known as Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants) in February 1987 and became an associate
of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (now known as
HKICPA) in September 1988. Dr. Leung obtained a Doctorate
degree of Philosophy in Economics from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics in September 2007, a Master degree of
Business Administration from Brunel University, United Kingdom in
December 1985 and a Diploma in Management Studies from The
Polytechnic of Central London, United Kingdom in October 1983.
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Dr. Yip Ngai (¥%), aged 46, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 19 February 2013. Dr. Yip is a
jewellery appraiser and valuation expert and has over 26 years of
experience in jewellery and art industry. Dr. Yip became a fellow
of the HKICPA in May 2012. He has also been appointed as a
specialist by the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic
& Vocational Qualifications since July 2011 and as a technical
advisor (watch and jewellery) by the Employees Retraining Board
since September 2013. Dr. Yip obtained a Doctorate degree of
business administration from the EU Business School in May 2011,
a Master degree of Business Administration from the Federation
University Australia in December 2008 and a Bachelor of Business
(Accounting) degree from the Monash University, Australia in
November 1999. Dr. Yip obtained a diploma in Gemmology from
The Gemmological Association and Gem Testing Laboratory of
Great Britain in October 1994.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang (ZF#2#), aged 37, is our chief financial
officer and company secretary. He joined our Group in June 2012
and is responsible for overseeing the financial, accounting and
secretarial affairs of our Group. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
Cheng worked at KPMG from 2006 to 2012 and his last position
was assistant manager. Mr. Cheng was registered as a certified
public accountant and a certified public accountant (practising) of
the HKICPA in January 2010 and September 2012, respectively.
Mr. Cheng obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration in
Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in November
2006.

Mr. Ng Kai Man ({fEf{X), aged 59, is our marketing director
and is responsible for managing and operating our property
mortgage department. Mr. Ng joined our Group in 2013. His main
duties are strengthening customer relationships by scheduling
regular personal and company visits in Hong Kong in order to
explore new business opportunities with potential customers. Prior
to joining our Group, he had been working in Wing Lung Bank
since 1988 and was promoted to senior financial manager in
2010. Mr. Ng obtained a Diploma in marketing from Hong Kong
Productivity Council and Hong Kong Institute of Marketing in
1999 and a professional Diploma in marketing management from
Hong Kong Management Association in 1996 respectively. In 1999
he was elected full member of Hong Kong Institute of Marketing
and awarded as Professional Marketer (ProM) in 2001. He also
obtained an advanced professional Diploma in financial planning
from The University of Hong Kong, School of Professional and
Continuing Education in 2006. In 2005, he has been admitted
as a Certified Professional Marketer (Asia) by Asia Marketing
Federation, which is a member of World Marketing Federation.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang (ZF##) is our company secretary.
Biographical details of Mr. Cheng are set out under the paragraph
headed “Senior Management” in this section.
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a8
{‘2_‘ & ﬁa SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited &7k A (5 )
a’ £, e e (e @3B AR )
33 Hysan Avenue T e Sf

3’1[7182()[}1? Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
TO THE MEMBERS OF Ol WAH PAWNSHOP CREDIT HOLDINGS
LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Oi Wah
Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 66 to 156, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 29 February 2020, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 29 February 2020 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Impairment of loan receivables

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 87 to 92.

The key audit matter

As at 29 February 2020, the Group’s loan receivables
amounted to approximately HKD1,299 million,
representing 90.9% of total assets, net of accumulated
expected credit loss (“ECL") allowances of approximately
HKD3 million.

The determination of loss allowances using the ECL model
is subject to a number of key parameters and assumptions,
including the identification of loss stages, estimates of
probability of default, loss given default, exposures at
default, discount rate, adjustments for forward-looking
information and other adjustment factors including value
of collaterals. Management judgement is involved in the
selection of those parameters and the application of the
assumptions.

We identified the impairment of loan receivables as a key
audit matter because of the complexity of the inherent
uncertainty and management judgement involved in
determining impairment allowances and because of its
significance to the financial results and the total assets of
the Group.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of loan
receivables included the following:

o understanding the ECL model used by the Group
and assess its internal control effectiveness;

o evaluating the reasonableness of critical assumptions
and methods applied in the ECL model;

o recalculating the amount of ECL allowance using
the ECL model based on the above parameters and
assumptions;

o critically assessing the forecast cash flows for credit-
impaired loan receivables by understanding and
challenging the viability of the Group’s recovery
plans and evaluating the timing and means of
realisation of collateral; and

o evaluating the presentation and disclosures on the
impairment of loan receivables in the consolidated
financial statements.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEE#% = EiERAR A A
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The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 28 February 2019 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 28 May
2019.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEE#% = EiERAR A A
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEE#% = EiERAR A A
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Hon Kei, Anthony.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P0O5591

Hong Kong
26 May 2020
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—_ZT-_TF _A -+ N HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

Notes
BitaE
Revenue U 3 5
Other income E AU A
Operating income BEIRA
Other operating expenses HA K LR 8(c)
Charge for impairment losses on loan MR EWE T 2 BEEE
receivables
Profit from operations REBRA
Finance costs BhE KA 8(a)
Profit before taxation BR%E AR A 8
Income tax Frigist 9
Profit and total comprehensive BREEBMEREZRRZE
income for the year attributable to ONE
shareholders
Earnings per share (in HK cents) - BRER (BWL) —
basic and diluted EARR#E
12

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEE#% = EiERAR A A

2020
—EEHF
$'000

Tt
223,959
3,367

227,326
(58,666)

(2,011)

166,649
(38,367)

128,282
(20,899)

107,383

5.5

2019
—ET-NF
$'000

T
224,763
4,885

229,648
(65,076)

(1,000)

163,572
(42,006)

121,566
(20,746)

100,820

5.1



Non-current assets
Plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Loan receivables
Other receivables
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Repossessed assets

Loan receivables

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Accruals and other payables

Bank loans and overdrafts

Obligations under finance leases

Lease liabilities

Other loans

Loans from the immediate holding
company

Tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE
E G
EREEE
FE W & 3R
H A fE YR IA
EEREBE

REBEE
R E E
FEUE R

B 5 KR E WA

B LR EEY

RBAE

FERT & A M LAt A 5K IR

RITERNES
B S AdE
HEAaE

Hip &5

HEEZERARZER

FEfI IR

REBEEFH

BEABERABAE

Notes
(=

13
14
15
17
16

15
17
18

20
19

14
21

22

f o B B IR L A

as at 29 February 2020 R=E=FF=-F=1+hH
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTHI7R )

2020
—E-FF
$'000
T

1,671
23,436
114,482
2,740
745

143,074

9,292
1,184,153
2,802
89,026

1,285,273

6,704
103,752

10,661
124,112

104,000
7,433

356,662

928,611

1,071,685

2019
—ET-NF
$'000
Tt
1,974

81,928

229

84,131

6,451
1,304,277
5,026
41,418

1,357,172

6,691
83,950
76

265,232

94,000
5,960

455,909
901,263

985,394
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as at 29 February 2020 A== F - A+ /.H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

Notes 2020 2019
if: = —TNF
$'000 $'000
T Tz
Non-current liabilities ERBEE

Debt securities issued BETEEES 23 162,684 162,565
Lease liabilities HEAE 14 13,682 =
176,366 162,565
NET ASSETS EERE 895,319 822,829

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXK #E 24
Capital fi& 7 19,385 19,385
Reserves 1 875,934 803,444
TOTAL EQUITY S 895,319 822,829

The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 156 were H66E156 A AN BHRRCHEFEN T =%
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26~ FH A= +/N AL RIXETIE
May 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward Ms. Chan Ying Yu
BREELE BR&EH 22 =
Director Director
BF EF

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEE#% = EiERAR A A



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

o N2l g
AR B IR
for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—Z-_ZTF A -+ hHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

Capital
Share Share Capital redemption Other  Retained
Notes capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
gx

WE B BGEE  WAEE  MEHE  RAEE REMR &
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
o f fh f FRFR

At 1 March 2018
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9

At 1 March 2018 (as restated)

Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year

Interim dividends declared and paid
during the year

Purchase of own shares

At 28 February 2019 and
1 March 2019

Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year

Interim dividends declared and paid
during the year

Final dividends approved in respect of
the previous year and paid during the
year

At 29 February 2020

R=E-NE=F-H 20874 156,358 44,963 502 12,001 553431 788,129
BRERE AR ER
RO T E - - - - - 79 79

R-F-\¥=R-H

(mE3)) 20874 156,358 44,963 502 12,001 553510 788,208
FREFIRZENAEE
- = = = - 100820 100,820
RERNE LR Z
FHRE 24(b) 8 (15,840) - - - - (15,832)
BR A RH 24(c)i) (1.497)  (50,367) - 1497 - - (50,367)

RZE-hEZBZTNAER
—2-fE=p-A 19,385 90,151 44,963 1,999 12,001 654330 822,829

FREHRZENAEE
- - - - - 107383 107,383
RENERRE 2T RS

24(b) - (20,782) - - - - (20782)
i EEER RN RIRL
RIS
24(b) - (1151) - - - - (14151)
RZBZEE-F-1AH 19,385 55,258 44,963 1,999 12,001 761,713 895319
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

Operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Bank interest income
Finance costs
Charge for impairment losses on loan
receivables
Net loss on loan receivables at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL")

Net loss on disposal of plant and
equipment

Issue of script dividend

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Operating cash flows before changes
in working capital

(Increase) decrease in repossessed assets

Decrease in loan receivables

(Increase) decrease in trade and other
receivables

Increase in accruals and other payables

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Investing activities

Payment for the purchase of plant and
equipment

Bank interest received

Proceeds from disposal of plant and
equipment

Proceed from disposal of a subsidiary

Net cash used in investing activities

RERK

BR Tt A1t )

LD RE R
BB KR E
ERREEZNE
RITHBUA
BERA
HIRR FE WS TR BB

g

BAFER AR

(IRAFEFARRE])
ZEWE R BRI

HEME kREZ
1R

BITARRR ER R

HEMB AR 2 Was

EEAS BB 2 EH
ReTE

EIREIEE (80 HD

R R

5 R KR
(#0) D>

O LT
B

EBmERE
ENEEFEHR

REXBHBRS TR
REXK
BERE MR A
EUEUERTTH R

HEBE RREZ
Fr{S30R

i E KB R R Z TS 0R

REXBFARS TR
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2020
—E-FF
$'000
T

128,282
486
11,511

(5
38,367

2,011

26

(100)

180,578
(2,841)
85,533

(516)

535
263,289

(19,942)

243,347

(266)

100

(161)

2019
—E-NF
$'000
Tz
(Restated)
(5&&=71)
121,566
522
(6)
42,006

1,000

86

165,185
1,657
15,175

4,899

250
187,166

(20,646)

166,520

(1,884)

60

(1,818)



Financing activities

Repayments of other loans

Repayments of bank loans

Repayments of loans from the immediate
holding company

Finance costs paid

Dividends paid

Repayments of principal on lease liabilities/
finance lease rentals

Repayments of interest on lease liabilities/
finance lease rentals

Proceeds from other loans

Proceeds from bank loans

Proceeds from loans from the immediate
holding company

Payment for purchase of own shares

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of year

Analysis of components of cash and
cash equivalents:
Bank balances and cash
Bank overdrafts

B A P

HAEBlEMER

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_ZTF A -+ BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

Notes 2020 2019
hE=s —EC-EHF —E—NF
$’000 $'000
Fx FIT
(Restated)
(&g&=71)
e
EEHEMER (299,120) (246,151)
ERIBITERK (67,507) (23,110)
EEREBIERARER
(40,000) (129,200)
BERRERA (37,229) (42,145)
BERRE 24(b) (34,893) (15,840)
BEHREAE @A
HEREzAE (10,597) (221)
BEREAE MERE
e 278 (1,541) (6)
HMBERZ S HIE 158,000 219,760
RITERZFTBEUEA 59,278 21,693
EBERARERZ
FT{S 508 50,000 97,200
fEE B & kD 2 5KIE 24(a) - (50,367)
MEXKMARESFHE (223,609) (168,387)
RERRAESEEY
#m R ) F8E 19,577 (3,685)
FHNZzRERESEEY
36,151 39,836
FRZBEERESEEY
55,728 36,151
RERBELESEWAR
R Z D -
RITHBRIRS 89,026 41,418
RITEX 19 (33,298) (5,267)
55,728 36,151

Annual Report 2020 =& — TFE £,



Aok B 5 WA Mk

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
secured financing business in Hong Kong, including pawn
loans and mortgage loans. Details of the principal activities
of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 33.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider
the immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Kwan Lik Holding Limited, which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), and TMF (Cayman)
Ltd. as trustee of a reserved power discretionary trust
for the benefit of Mr. Chan Chart Man, Mr. Chan Kai Ho
Edward, Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan
Nga Yu, Ms. Chan Kit Yu, Ms. Mui Hang Sin and Mr. Chan
Kai Kow Macksion, which is incorporated in the Cayman
Islands, respectively. These entities do not produce financial
statements available for public use.

The Company's registered office is located at Clifton House,
75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands and its head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong is located at Rooms 2302-2303,
Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HKD"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company, and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand ($'000) except when otherwise indicated.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEE#% = EiERAR A A
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BEMER) X - ARAMB AR 2 EEXH
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Limited 2 78 i 2 B & 5E AL 2 TMF (Cayman)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—Z-_ZTF A -+ hHILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for its first
time, the following new and amendments to HKFRSs,
which include HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS(s)"), amendments and Interpretations (“Int(s)"),
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA").

HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative

HKFRS 9 Compensation

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
HKAS 19 Settlement

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates and
HKAS 28 Joint Ventures

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015
HKFRSs — 2017 Cycle

The adoption of HKFRS 16 resulted in the changes in
the Group’s accounting policies and adjustments to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements
as summaries below. The application of other new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

FERFIEEMBHREED ([FE
issRE R ) REAERT

RAEE AEEEEXEANTHEEE
Ng ([BREHALE]) BHZMTEENB

SRANFEER] (EFRREBYBREE
Al ZAGEA ([FAEHER]) BTk
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HFEMBHREERE 165 HE

8 (AR BHRERE AEREEZ
ZEg) —REBE23% TEEM

HEMBHELRESR BRERMEZREAN

28T B
ERGHEAEI0N  HBET B
2T &8
BERHREAELE  ABPERAARAE
28T S
ERUBRELNY  —F-nEE
547 —T AN
ZERIBRE

A FEUE

AT SRR - R E AN B REERF 16
FERARE @A BREREH RN EA R
BRRERZCRAMAR - RAFERAEM
A B EM I REE R EETEAREARF
ERBEFEZHBRAERMAR SZEH
EUMBHRRAENEREEATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—_ZT-_TF _A -+ N HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT’D)

Impacts on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with
respect to lease accounting. It introduces significant changes
to the lessee accounting by removing the distinction
between operating lease and finance lease and requiring the
recognition of right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all
leases, except for short term leases and leases of low value
assets. In contrast to lessee accounting, the requirements for
lessor accounting have remained largely unchanged. Details
of these new accounting policies are described in note 3.
The Group has applied HKFRS 16 Leases retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity, where appropriate, at
1 March 2019. Certain comparative information has not
be restated and continued to be reported under HKAS 17
Leases.

On transition to HKFRS 16, the Group elected to apply the
practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which
arrangements are, or contain, leases. It applied HKFRS 16
only to contracts that were previously identified as leases.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied only
to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1 March
2019.

The major impacts of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements are described
below.

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 29 February 2020 EHZE—

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT’D)

Impacts on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases (CONT’'D)

The Group as lessee

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of
HKAS 17 Leases (except for lease of low value assets
and lease with remaining lease term of twelve months or
less). These liabilities were measured at the present value
of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 March 2019.
The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
applied to the lease liabilities on 1 March 2019 was 6.01%.

The Group recognises right-of-use assets and measures them
at the amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments — the
Group applied this approach to all leases.

The Group leases a motor vehicle which was classified as
finance leases under HKAS 17. For this finance lease, the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability at 1 March 2019 were determined at the carrying
amount of the lease asset and lease liability under HKAS 17
immediately before that date. Accordingly, the obligations
under finance leases are now included within lease liabilities,
and the carrying amount of the corresponding lease asset is
identified as a right-of-use asset. There is no impact on the
opening balance of equity.

?;%Aﬁa‘ i e Bk

“ZE_AZThBIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTHIR)

FERFIE BN BREERA ([F;
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RNBEBMBREEAE165 [HE | 2HE
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SERTRIBEE A GRS 175 [HE] ZRAID
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao o B 2 A M

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—_ZT-_TF _A -+ N HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2 EA#HIEEMEHREER ([F8
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING i mEEA ) REBET (&)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONT'D)

Impacts on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases (CONT'D) EaBBMEREERE16 [HE | 2HE

(&)

The Group as lessor AEEEBHAA
The Group leases certain pawnshops and subleases certain $’§lﬂjfﬂ;§¥/¢a)‘£& D iE B E E 2 B T &b
portion of the pawnshops. The accounting policies applicable cARKE (1ERHEA)ERZSSTERES
to the Group as lessor are not different from those under 7‘%@%5@5\”%17?‘)TIETZA*+BZM$EI§J )
HKAS 17. For sublease, under HKAS 17, the head lease and HmE  REBEESEEREN 7% THEED
sublease contracts were classified as operating leases. On HENEDERLCEHRE RBEEE B BH
transition to HKFRS 16, the right-of-use assets recognised AR 1 65R 6 /TJEETH SHRAZEREEE
from the head leases are presented in the consolidated WiRE B MmERANZS - HHENK2ZXHE
financial statements. The sublease contracts are classified as $ETJ§5§5%E7IW$&¢‘;§E'J”16%)1%?952@%%%3
operating leases by reference to the right-of-use asset arising ERDERKEHEE

from the head lease under HKFRS 16.

The following table summarises the impact of transition TEREINR=_ZE—-NE= ﬂ HBEZHBE

to HKFRS 16 at 1 March 2019. Line items that were not ﬂ‘%iﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ%mﬁ)ﬁ HE TRIEHINRT

affected by the adjustments have not been included. BRRARTE AR -
Carrying
amount
previously Carrying
reported at Impact on amount as
28 February  adoption of restated at 1
Notes 2019 HKFRS 16 March 2019
bl PR
R=Z—h%F EBHE R-ZE—h&E
—A=+NH HREZER =ZA—-Bz
Bits ERZREE F16H2F¥E KEIREE
$'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Fr Tr

Plant and equipment = I 554 (a 1,974 (83) 1,891

Right-of-use assets FREEE (a)(b) = 26,332 26,332

Obligations under finance BhE A EARE

leases (@) 76 (76) -

Lease liabilities — current HEBE—ANA (a)(b) = 9,625 9,625

Lease liabilities — non-current HEAE— BN (a)b) = 16,700 16,700

Notes: Hiat -

(@) The obligations under finance leases of approximately (a) —hE-—B-+ N B R EREREY
$76,000 as at 28 February 2019 were now included within 76,000755%57@?)%?/%5??&#&& ZERI 1655 5T
lease liabilities under HKFRS 16. The carrying amount of the AHEaE -REHEE T HEEE Y EHE
related assets under finance leases amounting to $83,000 was 83,000 TE EF D EE T REEE -
reclassified to right-of-use assets.

(b) As at 1 March 2019, right-of-use assets were measured at by R-ZT—hhE=F—HB FAEEERHEAZR
an amount equal to the lease liabilities of approximately FAEBEY$5H26,249,000T:HE ©

$26,249,000.

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok T B 5 A Mk

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—Z-_ZTF A -+ hHILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT’'D)

Impacts on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases (CONT’'D)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, the Group as
a lessee is required to split rentals paid under capitalised
leases into their capital element and interest element. These
elements are classified as financing cash outflows, similar to
how leases previously classified as finance leases under HKAS
17 were treated, rather than as operating cash outflows, as
was the case for operating leases under HKAS 17. The total
cash flows are unaffected.

Differences between operating lease commitment as at 28
February 2019, the date immediately preceding the date
of initial application, discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate, and the lease liabilities recognised as at 1
March 2019 were as follow:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA THIR )

FERFIE BN BREERA ([F;
PRREER ) REMBET (&)

RAEBYRREERF 165 [HE ] 2 &
(%)

RiFERERERT  ~AEE (EREHEA)E
BEMBERT 2ENEED REASE D
RMBED ZEFBOAEABERSRG (B2
ERRERESHERFEITRIBEARERE
ZHEERETAAM) MIELERSRE (10
BAGEAFI7TRATARKLEHMEZEE
TE) RERERBIRTE -

RZZE—NAF-_A=-F+N\B(BEEEaXEAA
Hptz BER) ARG EEEF R 2 C LB E&E
BER - NEFZA - BHERZHEAE LM
ZETEWNT

$'000
T
Operating lease commitments as at 28 February 2019 RZE-NE-_A-+NBZ
AT E AR 30,071
Less: Short-term leases and other leases with remaining  J& : 52 EiFA & K R4 FH S H R
lease term ended on or before 29 February 2020 ZECTF A=+ NHZZH
ERZHEMES (1,492)
28,579
Discounting effect using the incremental borrowing rate W= — &= —HUEGEEER X
as at 1 March 2019 MBRFE (2,330)
Add: Finance lease liabilities recognised under HKAS 17 Ml: R=F—LF =A==+ \BIRE
as at 28 February 2019 BB ERE17TRERZMERE
afE 76
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 March 2019 R-ZE-—NF=A—HERAZHEAE 26,325
Analysed as: PaR)iv=
Current portion BNERER 9,625
Non-current portion FERNHAEL 7 16,700
26,325
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE =T -_TF A -+ AILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 70517R )

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT’D)

Impacts on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases (CONT’'D)

Practical expedients applied

On the date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group
has also used the following practical expedients permitted by
the standard:

3 the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with reasonably similar characteristics.

o reliance on previous assessments on whether leases
are onerous by applying HKAS 37 immediately before
the date of initial application as an alternative to
performing an impairment review.

3 the accounting for operating leases with a remaining
lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 March 2019
as short-term leases.

° the exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement
of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application.

° the use of hindsight in determining the lease term

where the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—Z-_ZTF A -+ hHILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT’'D)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28

Insurance Contracts?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 3  Definition of a Business*

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform'’
HKAS 39 and HKFRS
7

Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting
2018

Revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting'

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined

& Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

The Directors anticipate that the application of the above
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA THIR )

FERFIE BN BREERA ([F;
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—_ZT-_TF _A -+ N HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for loan receivables at
FVPL that are measured at fair values, at the end of each
reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Details of fair value
measurement are explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A

BAVBRRDBERSSHMASEABZE
U BREEMER - IIN GRETHRERE
B AES EMRAREE RGO FTRE
2 EAREE -

REREHAR 78 M BERERTIRIBE 2 RAE
BiRR ﬁﬁ@iﬁﬁAE &2 EME KBRS -
ZERWETIZ A TEFTE -

FEELRA—RIRBEAEZIBIREFTGREZA
EMETE -

ATEATHSLEENT B AHRATHRR
TE (RBEF)TEPEBEFRBHELE
PR 8 B R Y 2 (B 1% (ANFAE) -
MARZERE T EERR RTINS —
EERAME TS - AT B RN TR
&R M -

TXEFNERGETEER -



o o B B R I i

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—_ZT-_TF A -+ NHILFE

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the provision of services and disposal of repossessed
assets in the ordinary course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Group uses a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

3 Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially same.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HEZE - —FF —
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of

the following criteria is met:

BZ+NBLLFE

The customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

The Group’ performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or service.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in
a contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected on
behalf of third parties.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

Interest income for all financial assets are recognised
as it accrues using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset.

Fee income is recognised when the corresponding
service is provided, except where the fee is charged
to cover the costs of a continuing service to, or risk
borne for, the customer, or is interest in nature. In
these cases, the fee is recognised as income in the
accounting period in which the costs or risk are
incurred or is accounted for as interest income.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A

T 7 & DA T B — TR G - B2 5 BE S [ 48
% Ml AI2E 0B R 2 THEERER
fRIfERR -

o EFPRAKHREQR R FIERAE
BB A FTRM 2 M ek

s ARHEENRRIBAREFNEEEARZ
SRR FINEE © K

AEEBENLEAZHAKEARERA
BEWEE AAKREARFIATEERE
S EEKBAS R ZFIEA

¥

A Al - Weas 0 B P 115 BA R S AR 55422 ) 4

é?J
70

Wk EPANEEZREFE TRERKRS
=hlEz e -

*ﬁfa$%luﬂzﬁﬁﬁﬁmuﬁz)\ﬁ§: VR 2 i
BT :

FIBEREEZHERARERFTRIZE
BRAEORER - BRMENIZeMTAZ
EHF B AR AR & SRR A LR
BRECREECRAREZL X Y
BEEREZREBERANGFEZEREE
mE BERENXEAREEZREAE-
EERESHMEENS  ERANXER
MEEZ B (BNHREIR R HE 2 IR
E421E)

B AU AR IR AR B RIS B RERR - MEf AT
YR B AR Y R A SR R 1R 3 P B AR S B AR TS
ZAEBEPEEZ BB H%E R B
BHEERRN - EHFBRAT  ZERAR
B AR 2 &5t BT R ARARK
ABRFIERBUA



Aok T B 5 A Mk

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—_ZT-_TF A -+ NHILFE

Disposal gain or loss is recognised when the buyer of
the repossessed assets takes control of and accepts the
goods.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
Group's returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to shareholders of the
Company. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to shareholders of the Company.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.

The Group initially recognises financial assets and financial
liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value,
which normally will be equal to the transaction price plus,
in case of a financial asset or financial liability not held
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset or issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs on
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed immediately.

Financial assets represent loans and receivables which mainly
comprise pawn loans and mortgage loans. Pawn loans are
loans provided whereby personal property such as gold,
jewellery and diamonds, watches and consumer electronic
products are used as collateral for the security of the loans.
Mortgage loans are loans secured by real estates.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), and FVPL.

Loans and receivables held by the Group are classified into
one of the following measurement categories:

. amortised cost, if the loan and receivable is held
within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”). Interest income from the loan
and receivable is calculated using the effective interest
method;
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o FVOCI — recycling, if the contractual cash flows of
the loan and receivable comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both the collection of contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income, except
for the recognition in profit or loss of expected credit
losses or impairment gains or losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses. When the loan and
receivable is derecognised, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss; or

. FVPL, if the loan and receivable does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the loan and
receivable (including interest) are recognised in profit
or loss.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the
Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument.
This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount
of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition. In making the assessment the Group considers:

o contingent events that would change the amount and
timing of cash flows;

o leverage features;
o prepayment and extension terms;

o terms that limit the Group's claim to cash flows from
specified assets (e.g. non-recourse loans); and

o features that modify consideration of the time value of
money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment.

(i)

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets, the effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
excluding expected credit losses, through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the
debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount
at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any loss allowance.
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Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not part
of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the ‘other operating
expenses’ line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 25.

Expected credit loss (“ECL") are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments, expected cash shortfalls are
measured as the difference between (i) the contractual cash
flows that would be due to the Group if the holder of the
loan commitment draws down on the loan and (ii) the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive if the loan is drawn
down.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

. fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other receivables:
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition
or an approximation thereof;

. variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest
rate;

o loan commitments: current risk-free rate adjusted for
risks specific to the cash flows.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

B BB R M
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

o 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

o lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to
result from all possible default events over the expected
lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses on loan receivables (exclude pawn loans at FVPL)
that are measured at amortised cost. The amount of
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as
the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increase in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A

Rt ERHEEBER  A&EE B2 HAN
HABERARENRAERZAERAESR
£ BEBEEMF - B AR RARREEIRR TR
BB R -

BEMEEERZATER —EEEHE

o  NREABHEERE: EHNmEHHR
1218 A RATRE S 2 BB PTE R E
B R

o 2HBHEEEHE BHREEAEMNE
EBBREAZHBRARFIAME AR
BHZBOFHMERMNES -

AEERIZEHENATEZREER (TR
BATEFABRRZHEER) BRAREEE
B BEERE NEREAYPEHBHREEER
TR ARBREZERESB TENSRAARL
EERRES-

AEE-ERBESREFERR2HRAEE
BRI EFeREECAREEBRRIREARE
BpEEEBERERIARGREMG  WRIE
B AMER NS E & ~ BB IEIR A R H R
SRR (BREEREEE (HER) )
ZE B R IR T R PR RS T T LAGEE o

BAAHEMERTAMS  ARERI12EAE
HEEBRAEEREE RIHEERRBE S
RERLARAIRIZ N - A AR EHER 2 PRRYER
B -HEREHAZHEREEERZFNME T
NBERERARBELEEN AL RARES
AIEIE N AEZE -



o o B B R I i

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_ZTF A -+ BILFE

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
financial instrument assessed at the reporting date with
that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making
this reassessment, the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered
includes the future prospects of the debtors’ repayment
ability as well as consideration of various external sources of
actual and forecast economic information that relate to the
Group’s operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

° failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

Significant increase in credit risk (CONT'D)

For loan commitments, the date of initial recognition for the
purpose of assessing ECLs is considered to be the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment.
In assessing whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition of a loan commitment, the
Group considers changes in the risk of default occurring on
the loan to which the loan commitment relates.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
i) the financial instrument has a low risk of default, ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term, and iii) adverse changes
in economic and business conditions in the longer term may,
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or

o information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past due or the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation to the Group
in full, without recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held) unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that
a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

. significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

o significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

3 the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the debtor.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when
the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets
or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function
of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure
at default. The assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as
the difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting
date, except for assets for which simplified approach was
used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONT'D)
Financial instruments (CONT'D)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao o B 2 A M

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( BAZSTEI7R )

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT’D)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (CONT'D)
Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not 1) contingent consideration
of an acquirer in a business combination, 2) held-for-trading,
or 3) designated as at FVPL, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a
financial liability.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—_ZT-_TF A -+ NHILFE

Definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as leasee

For contracts entered on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease
liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is
the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low
value assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted
by using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise:

] fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

o the amount expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of purchase options if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

The Group as leasee (CONT'D)
Lease liabilities (CONT'D)

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using
the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying

amount to reflect the lease payments made.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of
the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or
before the commencement date and any initial direct costs,

less lease incentives received.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to
dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on
which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, provision is recognised and measured under HKAS 37
“Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.
The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset,

unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. They are
depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful
life of the underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership
of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset
reflects that the Group expects to exercise a purchase
option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at

the commencement date of the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line in

the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a right-
of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified

impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok T B 5 A Mk

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—Z-_ZTF A -+ hHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONT’'D)
Leasing (CONT’'D)

Accounting Policy applicable on or after 1 March 2019
(CONT’D)

The Group as lessor

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor. Leases
for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or
operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate the
consideration under the contract to each component.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for
the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts.
The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease, rather than by reference to the underlying asset. If
the head lease is a short-term lease to which the Group
applies the exemption described above, the sublease shall be
classified as an operating lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, of such assets are included in plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the cost
of the assets over the term of the relevant lease or, where
it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the asset,
the life of the asset. Impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy. Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit or
loss over the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting
period. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments made.
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_ZTF A -+ BILFE

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items
of plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 16, assets held under finance
leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on
the same basis as owned assets. However, when there is
no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by
the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (the “CGU") to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGU for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in prior years. A reversal
of impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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In the recovery of impaired loan receivables granted under
the Pawnbrokers Ordinance (Chapter 166 of the laws of
Hong Kong), the Group takes possession of the collateral
assets from the customers. This possession takes place once
a loan becomes overdue, subject to a grace period granted
at the discretion of the Group in certain cases.

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the amortised
cost of the related outstanding loans on the date of
repossession, which is generally below the net realisable
value of the repossessed assets. Upon repossession of
the assets, the related loan receivables are derecognised
from the consolidated statement of financial position.
Subsequently, repossessed assets are carried at the lower of
the amount initially recognised or net realisable value and
are therefore written down if and when the net realisable
value falls to below the carrying amount of the asset. The
excess/shortfall of the net proceeds over the carrying amount
of the repossessed assets is recognised as a gain/loss upon
the disposal of the assets.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

B BB R M
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

BELERBERGEVBEHRRABZERAGBREE
B HERRPEFNARBERRERN TR =
R - EEH AR EBREIMAERRRE R Z
BiER - EERBEERRERAE/EIDH
AR B RIS RS A 2 1B TR
P A AR E i Z R MR - X B R Z R YR B
BB TIG R — AR S (RBA RN P E
EERAE BYEZEERPOEN NG
M AT EERRZERERAEERARE

RERRMBRARZIRE ZERNE R 5 - i
RIRETR A RS - BRIFA R B RS 5 IS =58
ZRmE - AER AR B RASRRA TS B
Bl - EZERAIGERTHADHEREZR Mk
52 FEAR e A B TR A E S 1 R T8 R A8 SR ]
ZERT  heEREEZETRE Z AR T
EREMELRTCHAEE -

BEERABE 2 REENSHREHARERN  1H
B ZE TR BE BB J2 50 B AR A it ) DA MK [ 2 B Bk
WMOBEML -

BELEFRBEENRBENREEHNREBSHR
EEMXBECEMBE (RBX) BEAE
FEREERRERZHEAE -

ERERARBREEZE  RBKEANEETE
R EMRbDAERLEERABREE
ZHABEEZ R

Annual Report 2020 =& — TEF R



Aok B 5 WA Mk

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either (i) the
same taxable entity; or (i) different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
in respect of salaries, annual bonus, paid annual leave and
the cost of non-monetary benefits in the period the related
service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Retirement benefits are provided by the Group under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
as defined contribution schemes. The employer's monthly
contributions to the scheme are at a maximum of 5% of
each employee’s monthly salary, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $30,000.

The cost of all these schemes is charged to profit or loss of

the Group for the year concerned and the assets of all these
schemes are held separately from those of the Group.
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—Z-_ZTF A -+ hHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONT’'D)
Employee benefits (CONT'D)
Long service payments

Certain of the Group's employees have completed the
required number of years of service to the Group in
order to be eligible for long service payments under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in the event of the
termination of their employment. The Group is liable to
make such payments in the event that such a termination
of employment meets the circumstances specified in the
Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of probable future long
service payments based on the best estimate of the probable
future outflow of resources which have been earned by the
employees from their service to the Group at the reporting
date.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group;

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )
EXRSTBUER (&)

BEEMN (&)
RARHEE

AEBETREEASED TIERMERESE
Hl RIBEBERBIGHINE LTRSS ERER
RHRBE - W& LA A REBIRGIMREZ
B AEEBEEXNZERES -

AEBCHAIEELEZ AREHRB SR &
RATBENARRHENER (BERHME BN
SR AR PREREN ) 2 S = bR RERR B4
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(@) M—BALHAUTER MRALRE
AL ZRRRER B RAEEAME
()  FHIRAREH AR
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—_ZT-_TF _A -+ N HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_ZTF A -+ BILFE

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial statements provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of businesses and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type of class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

MBREFAEBZZENBREOMRBEZE
BOEEHRARESRSTREEERENLD
RERTASESEEK MBI FEERRL
FIRsERR PR

IR EN S © BRIED BMEABRLLZ LB E
VHERMRBEE LETFME FFPHL
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BUHEMRL BRIERNEREED B ISETE
B AR ERZEE D BHAT & AR D L FIR
- RIETRE

Wi - RN EETRREM AR AT A
BREECABREEERBIGEERA  Tom
AZFEEBEZRAT BEEEECKBAIEEH
ERGEHHER DL -

PTA H M tE B AR E LA B A B e FERR -
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

When measuring fair value, except for the net realisable
value of repossessed assets and leasing transactions,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value
measurements into three levels, based on the characteristics
of inputs, as follows:

Level 1:  Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2:  Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3:  Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair
value measurement.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 # %=

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are required to
make estimates and assumptions about amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and disclosures
made in the consolidated financial statements. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following is the key assumption concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that has a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets within the next financial year.

The Group determines the impairment of loan receivables
based on assumptions about ECL. Key parameters included
the identification of loss stages, estimation of probability of
default, loss given default, exposures at default, discount
rate, adjustments for forward-looking information and other
adjustment factors including value of collaterals. At every
reporting date, the default rates are updated. Changes in
these assumptions and estimates could materially affect the
result of the assessment and it may be necessary to make
additional impairment charge to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

As at 29 February 2020, the carrying amount of loan
receivables was approximately $1,299 million (2019: $1,386
million) net of accumulated impairment of approximately
$3 million (2019: $1 million). During the year ended 29
February 2020, impairment loss of approximately $2 million
(2019: $1 million) have been recognised for the year ended
29 February 2020.

e W R M
—E_RE_A_tNAHIEFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TR )

RERM Mt 2 A RE S HRE EFA
RAMBHBRAZRNEE  BE KKk
XEBRERARBEERELGE RBRR - A&
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Hip A& - B SR A BRI Fhat»

fhat KA KRR S FER - MEFHEEHERTE

%;f FIAETHIR - R REERT @ kI i
o WA BERT RIS R 2 2 A MoK REIR - BIA

Eﬁf RIS HEMERERT 2 IR FOR SR AR FERR -

TXRERRRZEBZBRERNHERREBE
RKEREZRAETEVRFRESEEREERER
EAREZ G T REREZHEMBERRIR -
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T FIEEENZAELBEERREE CEM
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RIIRRERSNRLE

R-ZE-_TF-_A=-+hB EBRERZE
E{E#)/A1,299,000,0007T (=B — h 4 :
1,386,000,0007t) (LMK EFRELD
3,000,0007T ( =Z—J14F : 1,000,0007T) ) °
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

The principal activities of the Group are engaged in secured
financing business in Hong Kong including pawn loans and
mortgage loans.

Revenue represents interest income earned on pawn loans
and mortgage loans and results on disposal of repossessed
assets. The amount of each nature of business of revenue
recognised during the year is as follows:

AEEZEZXBERANBARSTEEARRE
(BRAZERRIZBEITER) X5 -

Wastg S ERRIIBEREFARMZF 2
WARRHERGWBIEEEE - FA - BEX
BHEER 2 KmSREMT -

2020 2019
—EEF —E-hEF
$'000 $'000
e Tt
Revenue from pawn loan business B BT 2 W
— Interest income from pawn loan receivables —ZBEEFIREHE 7 e sz
calculated using the effective interest BERZFBWA
method 10,213 7,843
— Interest income from pawn loan receivables —ZAFET AEZ 2 EUHE
at FVPL ERZ M BWA 54,264 51,351
— Gain on disposal of repossessed assets —HELIREIE E 2 R 7,266 6,914
71,743 66,108
Revenue from mortgage loan business RIBEAE T ER < W
— Interest income from mortgage loan —IREBRFEREFTE 2 B
receivables calculated using the effective RIBERE R EMA
interest method 152,216 158,655
223,959 224,763

Cost of disposal of repossessed assets for the year ended
29 February 2020 amounted to $47.3 million (2019: $45.9
million).

During the year ended 29 February 2020, the Group's
customer base is diversified and no customer with whom
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue.

During the year ended 28 February 2019, there was one
customer with whom transactions had exceeded 10% of the
Group's revenue. Revenue from interest income on mortgage
loan receivables from this customer, including interest income
from entities which were known as a group under common
control with this customer, amounted to approximately $25.1
million.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A

HE_Z_ZF_A_t+NBIEFE HEEK
[B& 7 2 AN 47,300,000 (ZF— 14
45,900,0007T ) °

BE_ZZF_A-_TNHLFE AEBZ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok T B 5 A Mk

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—Z-_ZTF A -+ hHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

SEGMENT REPORTING 6

The Group has one reportable segment, which is the
provision of secured financing business in Hong Kong,
including pawn loans and mortgage loans. Therefore, no
additional reportable segment and geographical information
have been presented.

7 EHRE

REEA-RHAZ2HH - IRBBREFEM
BE (BRAZERRBIBEMER) X5 -
It SRR 2 DI BESNA] 20 B S B o

OTHER INCOME 7 HfslwA
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
$'000 $'000
Fr 7
Rental income e WA 1,894 1,642
Credit related fee income EEMHEBEZRRA 1,281 3,042
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note) HEMB ARz Uk (M) 100 =
Bank interest income ERITH BUA 5 6
Others EHAitb 87 195
3,367 4,885

Note: Dream City Credit Limited, previously known as Oi Wah
Finance Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group incorporated in Hong Kong and owned Money Lender
License has been disposed during the year to an independent
third party at a cash consideration of $100,000.

Bt - A R R B LA M A KRR 2
E2ENBANZRERARAR (HHEE
MBARAR) EREAHET B BIE=

7 W2 MR (EA100,0007T

Annual Report 2020 =& — TR @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao o B 2 A M

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( BAZSTEI7R )

8 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8 PBR®AEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: BRA B R Th A& H R A T B I8 18 2 30
2020 2019
—EEF —ZET-hEF
$'000 $'000
Fx Tt
(a) Finance costs (a) ®ERA
Interest on other loans H B FRF) 8 17,529 21,853
Interest on debt securities issued BEITERESNE 9,932 9,900
Interest on loans from the immediate BEEEZERARZ
holding company BRAE 5,311 6,098
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERRBLFE 4,054 4,149
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERNE 1,541 =
Interest on obligations under finance BEHERE TS
leases - 6
38,367 42,006
(b) Staff costs (b) EImA
Salaries and other benefits e REMET 19,683 19,221
Directors’ remuneration (note 10) EEHM (EE10) 9,686 9,383
Contributions to Mandatory Provident EEIEATES
Fund (“MPF") ([@Es]) 2H® 525 552
Charge for provision for long service MR REARB S BE
payment 525 128
30,419 29,284

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A




8 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT'D)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=PAS Es
o o B B R I i
for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—Z-_ZTF A -+ hHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

8 MK¥iAnaF (&)

2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF
$'000 $'000
7 T
(c) Other operating expenses Hn&epix
Premises and equipment expenses L EY SRS 5
excluding depreciation: (TEFEHE) :
— rental of premises (Note) —ERE (M) 1,683 13,026
— maintenance, repairs and others —RE - B REAM 1,171 1,012
2,854 14,038
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN & 830 1,180
Depreciation of plant and equipment BB M ERETE 486 522
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 11,511 =
Advertising expenses EERX 4,143 9,856
Legal and professional fees ERREEER 3,092 4,430
Net loss on disposal of plant and HEMREREEZ
equipment B35 - 86
Net loss on loan receivables at FVPL BRAFESFAERZZ
BWER 2 EBEFE 26 3
Others Hth 5,305 5,677
25,393 21,754
58,666 65,076
Note: During the year ended 28 February 2019, the rental of Fiag - BE—S—hE—_A-+/\BI-EE WEl

premises was disclosed under HKAS 17.

SRBEERIPENE 1 TRTARE -
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

2020 2019
—ECEHE —E-hEF
$'000 $'000
Fr T

Hong Kong Profits Tax BERFEHR

Provision for the year FNEME

— Current tax — BNEAR IR 21,420 20,769
— Over-provision in prior year —BEFERERE (5) =
21,415 20,769
Deferred tax (Note 16) ELERIE (KiEE16) (516) (23)
20,899 20,746

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first $2.0 million of profits of
qualifying corporation will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above $2.0 million will be taxed at 16.5%. For both years,
Hong Kong profits tax of the qualified entity of the Group is
calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The profits of other Group entities in Hong Kong
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at the flat rate of 16.5%.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands

and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEE#% = EiERAR A A

R-E—N\EFE=ZA-+—H FEILLEBRBE_T
—LERHE (BT (FB75%)ENER ([HFHE
£])  BIAFEBHERMES - EHERN_Z—N\F
AT NABEERALE TRBEEEHNER-
RIEFEHEMASF A EHREEEH2,000,000T2
s AT % 8.25% 4 F + i2,000,0007T LA £ 2 & A
BRI E16.5% M - AREAERERRMETE
ZEBHERGEFESHREMBHTE - REETF
ARERERAGER c EMBEER O n M GEE
B —FR16.5% 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok T B 5 A Mk

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—Z-_ZTF A -+ hHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

INCOME TAX (CONT’D) 9 BB (&)
The income tax for the year can be reconciled to the profit FRMSHAESAEBREREMEEKAR 2R
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss TR N ERRAA T

and other comprehensive income as follows:

2020 2019

—E-BE —E-NF

$'000 $'000

7 Tt

Profit before taxation B 35 B A 128,282 121,566
Notional tax on profit before taxation, B2 AR A 2 B 318

calculated at applicable rates (FRERK R E 21,001 19,894

Tax effect of non-taxable income BARMBRAZ G E (24) (1)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR A BB E 47 975

Statutory tax concession (Note) EERIER R (MizE) (120) (122)

Over-provision in prior year B FEBREREE (5) =

Income tax PSRt 20,899 20,746

Note: Statutory tax concession represented a reduction of Hong Mt : %'E%R'I,Ej)ﬁﬁa%‘é:?*ﬂi/:j@%%i%ﬁ
Kong Profits Tax for the year of assessment 2019/2020 and \i}%/&j%—\}\i/f%—j}i%ﬂ%)ﬁZéﬁ
2018/2019 by 100%, subject to a ceiling of $20,000. A FSHNR100% » M EFR %420,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao o B 2 A M

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( BAZSTEI7R )

10 E=H
EEEWIRIEE B A TR E383(1)ERATF
(BREEEMNSER) BHIE2HWBENT -

10 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 29 February 2020 BE-E-ZEF-_A-THhBALFE

Salaries

Directors’ and other Discretionary Contributions
fees benefits bonuses to MPF Total
ek
E=Hme Hit @7 BMigTA  BESER st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Executive directors HITES
Chan Kai Ho, Edward FRERZR
(Chief Executive) (T8 - 1,730 5,040 18 6,788
Chan Ying Yu PR S5 - 590 - 18 608
Chan Chart Man PREE XX - 490 - - 490
Chan Mei Fong BRER - 957 - 18 975
Non-executive directors FEHTES
Ng Siu Hong (Note) hARRR (FfIEE) 105 - - - 105
Chan Kai Kow, Macksion — FRERER 180 - - - 180
Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors
Lam On Tai N @ 180 - - - 180
Leung Shiu Ki Albert 2K 180 - - - 180
Yip Ngai =R 180 - - - 180
Total 45 825 3,767 5,040 54 9,686

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A



RN
B BB R M
for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_ZTF A -+ BILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

Salaries
Directors’ and other Discretionary Contributions
fees benefits bonuses to MPF Total
ek
E=He Hitt 7 BBTEAL BESHN st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Executive directors HITES
Chan Kai Ho, Edward PRER SR
(Chief Executive) (fTH#EZk) - 1,651 5,045 18 6,714
Chan Ying Yu BREH - 552 - 18 570
Chan Chart Man PR 3R X - 472 = = 472
Chan Mei Fong BRER - 889 - 18 907
Non-executive director  FEHTES
Chan Kai Kow, Macksion  BRETEK 180 - - - 180
Independent non- BYEHTES
executive directors
Lam On Tai e 180 - - - 180
Leung Shiu Ki Albert KA 180 = = = 180
Yip Ngai R 180 - - - 180
Total HET 720 3,564 5,045 54 9,383

Note: Mr. Ng Siu Hong was appointed as non-executive director on
1 August 2019.

The discretionary bonus for Mr. Chan Kai Ho, Edward is
determined by having regard to his performance and the
Group’s performance and profitability and the prevailing
market conditions for both years.

Mr. Chan Kai Ho, Edward is also the chief executive of the
Company (the “Chief Executive”) and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by him
as the Chief Executive.

No Directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during both years.

During both years, there were no amounts paid or payable
by the Group to the Directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals as set out in note 11 below as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office.

Hiat - hBBEEER —Z—NFN\A - BEZERFE
HITES-

BREASR AL MIBIEA DKL EMEFERZ
REAEAREB 2 ZERATENARBRITTH
SERE °

REREENMBARA ZITHAS ([1TEHA
R MEXHEERN e BREARBRET
TR EPTIRHBRTE < BN -

RMEFEAR  HEEENEXRABHEEME
B

RREFER  NEEY B NXEN TESK
TXHENFAEEAARRSFHMA LKA
DMERBAI R EF MBS MBEAREIR 2 A%
TERRERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao o B 2 A M

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE_—Z—
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5I7R )

ZFE_A+NBLFE

11 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
(2019: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 10. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
remaining three (2019: three) are as follows:

11 REHFMAL

hEaseFMALTHFERE (ZT—NF W
H)REF REZHFHRMEI10RE - BT =
FH(ZT-NEF:=8) ALZHBEENT -

2020 2019

—E-BE —E-hF

$'000 $'000

Fx Tt

Salaries and other benefits Fre L EMEF 3,232 2,500
Discretionary bonuses EETEAL - 842
Contributions to MPF SRR B K 54 54
3,286 3,396

The emoluments of the above three (2019: three) individuals

F=%2(ZZ2-NF: =ZR)RaFMALZ

with the highest emoluments are within the following bands: HENIEA T & B A :
2020 2019
—E-TF —T—hF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AH
Nil — $1,000,000 Z£%£1,000,0007T 1 1
$1,000,001 - $1,500,000 1,000,001 2 1,500,0007T 2 2

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok T B 5 A Mk

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—Z-_ZTF A -+ hHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BRER
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable AR B R B T AR E AR B F Th R 1% DA T Sk
to shareholders of the Company is based on the following FTE
data:
Earnings &7
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
$'000 $'000
7 T
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders 7K/ &1 P& B & 15 4 (A3 7
of the Company 107,383 100,820
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EERZNEF 9
2020 2019
et i 223 —ZT-NF
Number of Number of
shares shares
g4 A&1D 81 B
'000 ‘000
TR T
Issued ordinary shares at 1 March R=A—BzZB3TEEi 1,938,468 2,087,360
Effect of scrip dividend issued (note 24(c)(ii) B ETRERMD ZFE
(B EE24(c) i) ) - 144
Effect of purchase of own shares (note 24(c) BERIBESKH ZFE
(iii)) (B zE24(c)iii) ) - (115,812)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares F{EstEERERRT 2
for the proposes of basic earnings per 3B AR ANk T 5 B
share 1,938,468 1,971,692

The basic earnings per share and the diluted earnings per HRAMEAEEHED ETEFTEEL B  RNEKRE
share are the same as there were no potential dilutive ZRZF|EE&ALESSZFFE[E o
ordinary shares in issue during both years.
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

Leasehold Furniture and

improvements fixtures Motor vehicles Total
HEYERE REAREE B st
$'000 $°000 $°000 $'000
T T T T
Cost: AR
At 1 March 2018 R-ZE—/\F
=H—H 3,780 2,762 2,265 8,807
Additions NE 159 726 999 1,884
Disposal HE - - (758) (758)
At 28 February 2019 RZZT—NEF
—A-+N\H 3,939 3,488 2,506 9,933
Impact on initial adoption of  EAFME BT
HKFRS 16 (Note 2) W ERIE 1655
2 (MisE2) = = (1,247) (1,247)
At 1 March 2019 (as restated) N=—ZT—HNFE=H
B (&£E5) 3,939 3,488 1,259 8,686
Additions /?F\ 189 77 - 266
Transfer from right-of-use BRAGHAEEE
assets (Note) (BtsE) - - 1,247 1,247
At 29 February 2020 RZEZFF
—A=+hHE 4,128 3,565 2,506 10,199
Accumulated depreciation: RFHTE :
At 1 March 2018 RZE—-\F
:ﬂ H 3,758 2,696 1,595 8,049
Charge for the year FREH 16 67 439 522
Written back on disposal £ &5 i Bl - = (612) (612)
At 28 February 2019 and 1 RZE—NF
March 2019 = ey AN =4
ZT-hEF
=H—H 3,774 2,763 1,422 7,959
Impact on initial adoption of  EXERME B
HKFRS 16 (Note 2) WEERIZE 1655
272 (ME2) - - (1,164) (1,164)
At 1 March 2019 (as restated) R=_Z—LF=A
—H (&&5) 3,774 2,763 258 6,795
Charge for the year FAXE 65 169 252 486
Transfer from right-of-use BEEEHEEE
assets (Note) (Bf=E) - - 1,247 1,247
At 29 February 2020 RZTZFF
—B=+AH 3,839 2,932 1,757 8,528
Carrying values: ARMEE
At 29 February 2020 RZTZFF
—B=+AH 289 633 749 1,671
At 28 February 2019 RZT—NEF
—A=+NH 165 725 1,084 1,974
Note: During the year ended 29 February 2020, the Group M BE_ZT_TF_A-TNBLFE A5E
reclassified a motor vehicle with Nil carrying value from right- N EHEEREEEREESEEH D EERR
of-use assets upon the expiration of finance lease. BAZEZFHE-

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEE#% = EiERAR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok T B 5 A Mk

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—Z-_ZTF A -+ hHILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D) 13 BEREE (&)
The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated on LB ERFZEEENEEMEAFHRNE
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the BEREERENT :
assets, as follows:
Leasehold Over the shorter of term of the lease HEWMEEE MHEHNSF
improvements or 5 years (R&reER%E)
Furniture and 5 years RAREE 54
fixtures
Motor vehicles 5 years B 54
As at 28 February 2019, the Group leased motor vehicle RZE-NAEF_AZ+N\B AEERE_-F
under finance lease expiring in 2019. At the end of the —NFEmcRmERERSTE NEEHER
lease term, the Group has the option to purchase the leased B AEEARRGAEECBEEEEHRENR
vehicle at a price deemed to be a bargain purchase option. HoEAERENATEE -
None of the lease includes contingent rentals.
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 14 FAEERHEEESE
LIABILITIES
Right-of-use assets RRRAE
29 February 1 March
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
—B=+hH =H—H
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Leased properties — buildings HEYHE BT 23,436 26,249
Motor vehicle B - 83
23,436 26,332

The Group has lease arrangements for leased properties and
a motor vehicle. The lease terms are generally ranged from
one to five years with fixed lease payments.

In respect of lease arrangement for renting motor vehicle,
the Group has options to purchase motor vehicle at a
nominal amount at the end of the lease term. The Group's
obligations are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased
asset for such lease.

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year ended 29
February 2020 amounted to approximately $8.6 million due
to new leases of leased properties.

AEEEREEVER —WAIEFELEER
P HEH—RNF—2RF  WANEEHR
E5R -

SEMAEZHERNE  AREHAREE
i RS 2 MERETE R 2E - AEE A
EAHBASZHEECHEEEMARERE
e

HE_Z-_ZFE-_A-+HhBILFE FEEH
WEEX58,600,0007T A EE 2
FEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao o B 2 A M

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE =T -_TF A -+ AILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5I7R )

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (CONT’'D)
Right-of-use assets (CONT'D)

EHEEE (8&)

14 ERAREEREERE ()

During the year ended 29 February 2020, the Group has %Z:': —EF-AZHTNABLEFE AKHE
subleased part of the leased properties. The Group has Tﬂ'ﬁﬂg *ﬂ NE-AEBEERS B ER
classified the sublease as operating lease. During the year %Mﬂ& (E_F_FF_A-TAALF
ended 29 February 2020, the Group recognises rental B $’$IEEQZJ/‘EE)EH%;%EFZ%H%J&)\Z’]
income from subleasing right-of-use assets of approximately 1,900,0007T ( =% — 14 : 1,600,0007T) °

$1.9 million (2019: $1.6 million).

Lease liabilities HESE

29 February 1 March
2020 2019
bt 3 —NF
—B=+hH =H—H
$'000 $'000
S T
Current D 10,661 9,625
Non-current FERB 13,682 16,700
24,343 26,325

Amounts payable under lease liabilities HESEE N ZEMAXK
2020
—E-EF
$'000
Frx
Within one year —F A 10,661
After one year but within two years —FERBERFR 9,752
After two years but within five years MEBERFA 3,930
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months B 128 A RS 2 B Bi5RIE 24,343
(shown under current liabilities) (PR mENBEET) (10,661)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months K128 A& 48 2 BI85k IE 13,682

During the year ended 29 February 2020, the Group entered
into new lease agreements in respect of renting leased

properties and recognised lease liabilities of approximately g 600 0007T o

$8.6 million.

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok T B 5 A Mk

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—Z-_ZTF A -+ hHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 14 FAEZSENREEESRE (&)

LIABILITIES (CONT'D)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss RIBHERZEHE
2020
3
$°000
Fr
Depreciation of right-of-use assets — leased properties EREEETE —HEWE 11,428
Depreciation of right-of-use assets — motor vehicle FREEERE - RE 83
Interest expense on lease liabilities HESBEZFEMXT 1,541
Expense relating to short-term leases BRARHEEZRAEX 1,683
Income from subleasing right-of-use assets HEEREEEZ KA 1,894

During the year ended 29 February 2020, the total cash
outflow for leases amount to approximately $13.8 million.

LOAN RECEIVABLES

HE—

= —=

15 BRER

F_A-THABILFE AEZR
& #2549 513,800,0007T ©

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Loan receivables at amortised cost: RBHERATEZERER
— Pawn loans —HEENK 30,045 29,837
— Accrued interests of pawn loans —HE B ERF A 784 591
Pawn loan receivables JE B B R 30,829 30,428
— Mortgage loans — BB E 1,137,328 1,223,295
— Accrued interests of mortgage loans — BB ER BB 12,278 12,505
1,149,606 1,235,800
Less: Impairment allowance on mortgage W REERETORERE —
loans — Stage 3 E3REER (3,011) (1,000)
Net mortgage loan receivables R BRI E R 58 1,146,595 1,234,800
Net loan receivables at amortised cost WS AT 2 2 B E 5K
R 1,177,424 1,265,228
Loan receivables at FVPL: BAFETABZZER
L e
Pawn loans HE B 121,211 120,977
Total loan receivables EWEREE 1,298,635 1,386,205
Current portion included under current assets  ZIRRENEEIE 2 BVEAE (1,184,153) (1,304,277)
Amounts due after one year included under  FIRIERENEEE A —F1%
non-current assets FIHARIE 114,482 81,928
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao o B 2 A M

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( BAZSTEI7R )

15 LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONT’'D)

In determining the expected credit losses for loan receivables,
the Directors have determined using a number of key
parameters and assumptions, including the identification of
loss stages, estimates of probability of default, loss given
default, exposures at default, discount rate, adjustments for
forward-looking information, value of collateral and other
adjustment factors.

There has been no change in the estimation technigues or
significant assumptions made during both years in assessing
the loss allowance for loan receivables.

15 BEWER (&)

REETRUERZ BHEERBER EFDRTE
ERZHEAR2HRER  SEEERER
RETENM R BOELEZEBE BHORR

BRI HEFIEMEER  ERRzBEREM

REEFER - Y E Rz B R R ER AT A
ZIEFH RS E 2 EARR L EES -

Movement in impairment losses SHEEESE
2020 2019
—ECERH —F-NF
Expected credit loss Expected credit loss
RMEEER BHEEEE
Stage 3 Total Stage 3 Total
F3MEER E EEli- 12 et
$'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Fit Fi T T
At 1 March R=H—H 1,000 1,000 - -
Impairment losses charged Bz IR 2 B E
to profit or loss 518 2,011 2,011 1,000 1,000
At 29 February/28 February WZ=—A=+hIH~
—A=+N\H 3,011 3,011 1,000 1,000

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A



for the year ended 29 February 2020 # %=

Ageing analysis of the gross amount of loan receivables is
prepared based on contractual due date and not net of loss

allowance as follows:

29 February 2020 —E-THF_H
=—+hH
Not past due 37 #5480 B
Less than 1 month past due  #HA R 11E A
1 to less than 3 months past #EEI 118 A =R
due 31E A
3 to less than 6 months past &3/ B = A7
due 61 A
6 months to 1 year past due #EE61EA =14
Over 1 year past due BEAF A E
28 February 2019 —E-NF=HA
=t+NH
Not past due 3 f 780 H
Less than 1 month past due  #EHIL 118 B

1 to less than 3 months past #EA1{E A = DR

due 3@ A
3 to less than 6 months past #EE31E A = DR
due 61E A

6 months to 1 year past due #EEi61E A =14
Over 1 year past due EHRF LA £

Pawn loans
at amortised
cost
R R A
HEZ
HBEEN
$°000

Tt

28,196

2,416

217

30,829

27,023
3,090

315

30,428

At 29 February 2020, of these mortgage loans which have
been past due for one month or above, except for one
mortgage loan receivable amounted to approximately $7.3
million (2019: $7.5 million) on which an allowance for
expected credit loss had been recognised, the respective
valuations of the collaterals can fully cover the outstanding
balances of these loans as at the end of reporting periods. In
respect of the mortgage loans which have been past due for
less than 1 month, the amounts mainly represent occasional
delay in repayment and are not an indication of significant
deterioration of credit quality of these mortgage loans.

e W R M
—E_RE_A_tNAHIEFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TR )

ERGRNINARRATENREERE R
WERBREZREDITANT -

Pawn loans at Mortgage

FVPL loans Total

RATE
FTAEEZ RIBIE A

HEEX B st

$000 $'000 $000

Fr Fr Fr

117,913 776,130 922,239

2,264 248,613 253,293

523 94,704 95,227

511 22,821 23,549

- 7,338 7,338

121,211 1,149,606 1,301,646

117,852 1,034,040 1,178,915

2,445 72,880 78,415

441 112,693 113,449

239 = 239

= 8,661 8,661

= 7,526 7,526

120,977 1,235,800 1,387,205

RZEZTEF-_A=+hB HEaH—(E
B E2ZERBEFERFT B—24
7,300,0007T ( == — L4 : 7,500,0007T ) Z fE
Wiz B IR E R B EREHREEEBEEN B
WERR - HERS 8 2 HERAEEIRE LS
BERZAREEER BB LR1ER 2R BE I
ERNEZHRNERLEEERMES  WTRR
ERBERERZ EEEEEES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao o B 2 A M

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE_—Z—

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

16

17

ZE_A-+NBLFE

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 16 EEBIHEEE
The followings are the major deferred tax assets recognised THARREFERRAZ EFZREREEE R
and movements thereon during both years: HEE):
The related
depreciation
in excess of Impairment
depreciation losses on loan
allowances receivables Others Total
BHITERE EBWERZ
ZEBITE RIEEE HAt et
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
F Tr T Tr
At 1 March 2018 RZZE—N\F
=H—H 161 15 45 221
Impact on initial application B XFER BB
of HKFRS 9 HAERIZE 95
2 - (15) - (15)
(Charged) credit to profit or  (#0B%) 5t AE=
loss (note 9) (F$5E9) (142) 165 - 23
At 28 February 2019 and 1 —NF=A
March 2019 —ZTNBERZE
—NWE=A—H 19 165 45 229
Credit to profit or loss (note st A1Ez8 (Ki7£9)
9) 34 332 150 516
At 29 February 2020 A e
—AZ=+hA
53 497 195 745
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 BEZREMEWRIE
2020 2019
bt 3 — N
$'000 $ 000
Tr T
Non-current FEENHR
Others EAth 2,740 =
Current BN HA
Trade receivables B 2 IR 700 564
Deposits and payments in advance e RIBNFEIR 2,000 4,360
Others HAh, 102 102
2,802 5,026

Trade receivables are due within 60 days from the date
of billing. All of the trade and other receivables are not
impaired as the expected loss rate is close to zero and

expected to be recovered within one year.

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 29 February 2020 EHZE—

?;%Aﬁa‘ i e Bk

—ZEFE_RATNABIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( ABTTHI7R )

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT'D) 17 E SRk HthEWRIE (&)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables presented based on %E/\\ﬁﬁi fiiﬁﬁﬂiy\ﬂﬂl SR H RS 2B EH
invoice date which approximate to the respective revenue 292 B S EWFIE 2 BRE DT T :
recognition dates at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:
2020 2019
—ECEBFE —T-NF
$'000 $'000
T 7
0-60 days 0E60X 700 564
Trade receivables that were not past due relate to a wide I #2580 B 2 B 5 FE YR SR I8 B 2% 4 N I HRGE 4
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of e EFAR-
default.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18 RERBREEFEY
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, MERERERERNE  BekBeEEYEE
cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following: A& 18
2020 2019
—EC-BFE —heF
$'000 $'000
T FIT
Cash on hand FERS 6,326 5,344
Cash at banks RITHE 82,700 36,074
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated R4RAFBEMRREKR ZIRE K
statement of financial position REEED 89,026 41,418
Bank overdrafts (note 19) RITHEZ (FIFE19) (33,298) (5,267)
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated RiFARERERZHER
statement of cash flows REEED 55,728 36,151

Cash at bank carries interest at prevailing market rates for
both years.

M EF R 2 RITRSRIRITHEH RS
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Aok B 5 WA Mk

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

The table below details changes in the Group’'s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the consolidated statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.

Lease
Bank loans liabilities

ROEY HERE

$'000 $'000
Sro ST
At 1 March 2019 i 23
=B—H 78,683 26,325
Changes from financing RERERS
cash flows (Note) mEZE
(FizE) (8.229)  (12,138)
Non-cash change Be#
New lease arrangements ¥ E L4
(Note 28) (FiizE28) - 8,615
Finance costs incurred BELZRE
5% - 1,541
At 29 February 2020 R-B-ZE
ZA=+nAH 70,454 24,343
Obligation
under
finance
Bank loans leases
MERE
RITEX I
$'000 $'000
T Tr
At 1 March 2018 RZB-N\%§
=B—H 80,100 297
Changes from financing RERERS
cash flows (Note) mEZE
(FizE) (1,417) (227)
Finance costs incurred BEEZHE
B - 6
At 28 February 2019 R-E-h%
—A=t+NH 78,683 76

Note: The cash flows make up the net amount of proceeds from
and repayments of loans from the immediate holding
company, other loans and bank loans in the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEE#% = EiERAR A A

TREIAKRERERE TS cBEEH 2
B ERERRE MRS EE MEADIE
EZBERRSRECHNIARKRARZREHN
HERLRERDPER/RAERERD ZHER
BrAE-

Loans
from the
immediate
Other holding Debt Accrued
loans company securities interest Total
ERER
HttEm 2QAZER E¥EZ  EAR st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Tr Fr Tr Tr Tr

265,232 94,000 162,565 3,125 629,930
(141,120) 10,000 - (37,229)  (188,716)
- - - - 8,615

- - 119 36,707 38,367

124,112 104,000 162,684 2,603 488,196
Loans
from the
immediate
Other holding Debt Accrued
loans company Securities Interest Total
ERER
HittEm 2QAZER E¥EZ  EAR #ast
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Fr Fr Fr T T

291,623 126,000 162,452 3,383 663,855

(26,391) (32,000) = (42,145)  (102,180)

= = 13 41,887 42,006

265,232 94,000 162,565 3,125 603,681

fia - RemEMERA RS RERTEBIERAA
ZEF EMERRBITERZAERARE
THOFE ©
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_ZTF A -+ BILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

The details of the bank loans and overdrafts were as follows: RITERRBE L HFBOT
2020 2019
—EEF —ZET—hEF
$'000 $'000
Tt T
Unsecured bank overdrafts (note a) IR ITE S (Ki5Ea) 33,298 5,267
Bank loans, secured (note b) RTEF BEA (HiEb) 40,000 50,000
Bank loans, unsecured (note ¢) IR1TEF  EIEHE (iEc) 30,454 28,683
70,454 78,683
Total bank loans and overdrafts IRITERRE S B5E 103,752 83,950

Notes: Bzt -

(@) At 29 February 2020, unsecured bank overdraft facilities (@ RIZZE_ZEF_A-T+HILB KWBARERERMH

of approximately $41.5 million (2019: $11.5 million) were
provided to the subsidiaries and utilised to the extent as
disclosed above. At the end of reporting periods, the bank
overdrafts carried floating interest rate range from prime
rate minus 0.75% to prime rate plus 1.5% per annum with
repayment on demand clause.

At 29 February 2020, uncommitted secured revolving bank (b)
loan facility of the lower of $50.0 million (2019: $50.0
million) and a certain percentage of the aggregate principal
amount of the mortgage loan receivables of a subsidiary
which are then charged to the banks were obtained. The
tenor for the facility ranged from one to six months as
selected by the subsidiary. The bank loans carried floating
interest rate of one month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") plus 4% per annum (2019: HIBOR plus 4% per
annum) and the available uncommitted banking facility after
taking into consideration of the drawdown was $10.0 million
(2019: Nil). The uncommitted secured revolving bank loan
facility was secured by certain mortgage loan receivables with
a carrying value of approximately $131.1 million (2019: $266.3
million).

At 29 February 2020, unsecured bank loan facilities of ()
approximately $30.5 million (2019: $28.7 million) were

provided to the Company and the subsidiaries and utilised

to the extent as disclosed above. At the end of reporting

periods, the bank loans carried floating interest rate ranged

from prime rate minus 0.75% to prime rate plus 1.5% per

annum.

#4941,500,0007C ( —F— L4 : 11,500,0007T )
EIERRTEXRE YEFBLXARES
B NBEHR ROTEXEN FREEHNX
0.75% Z A BBFIZEAN.5% 2 )F B EF| =&t
B W R B SRR 5K

RZZEZZTF-_A=-+hAB BERGEE
EALAEREBERTERRE S8 A
50,000,0007t ( == — f1.4F : 50,000,0007T ) &
M A A& R E IR FIRIT 2 EUURIBIEEE
A BEZETED L ZRIRE - gt &R H
B—ENEATE  AZMBARIERE - RITE
FIE—EABBERITRAZERE ([EBRITRZE
wE])MNA% (ZZT—NF : HABRITRERE
4% ) 2 ZFEFEF RS - ML RERIRK
1% - Al ) A 2 EAGEIRTTALE /&10,000,000
T (ZE—NEF:T) - BEAGAERBRRT
BERREAR®EEL4131,100,0007T (=F
— L5 1 266,300,0007T ) 2 & T REUIZIEEK A
ERIEHEHA -

RZB_ZF_A-_+NB ARAKRNE
N A ER 430,500,000 (=T — h &
28,700,0007T ) EFFRITEHR@E - WEEHH
EXFHERESE  NIREHR - SRITERIEN T
HEEFER0.75% EHEEFEM 5% 2%
B)FF KB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao o B 2 A M

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( BAZSTEI7R )

19 BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS (CONT'D) 19 #R{TERREX (&)
During the year, the Group had fulfilled all the financial FA AEEERTAKSERITHEE T ZMAE
covenants, if any, under the Group's banking facilities and MgRHE (E)  MABRTRESIBAR A
all banking facilities were guaranteed by the Company and RASEFE G TRBEERIELER -
certain loan receivables held by the Group.
20 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 EtERARAEMENRE
2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NEF
$'000 $'000
T 7T
Accrued interest expenses FEETFI B 2,603 3,125
Accrued expenses EErERARX 2,001 2,295
Provision for long services payment REBRE S B 1,200 687
Other payable and deposit received H At BT FRIE & B W EUR & 900 584
6,704 6,691
All of the accruals and other payables are expected to be Fﬁﬁjﬁﬁ%}ﬂéﬁﬁ{ﬁjﬁ%ﬁ?ﬂlﬁi‘ﬁiﬂﬂﬁé—ﬁfﬁ\]%ﬁ
settled within one year or are repayable on demand. TEBIRBREIE -
21 OTHER LOANS 21 HMEER

During the year ended 29 February 2020, the Group
obtained uncommitted secured revolving loan facilities from
an independent third party. The limit of the facilities is the
lower of $439.0 million (2019: $440.3 million) and a certain
percentage of the aggregate principal amount of certain
mortgage loan receivables of the subsidiaries which are then
sub-charged/sub-mortgaged to the independent third party.
The facilities are interest-bearing at Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited (“HSBC") prime rate plus 2%
per annum (2019: HSBC prime rate plus 2% per annum) and

the tenor for the facilities is one year.

As at 29 February 2020, the available uncommitted loan
facilities after taking into consideration of the drawdown
was $18.0 million (2019: Nil). These loan facilities were
secured by certain mortgage loan receivables for the Group
with a carrying value of $177.6 million (2019: $331.5

million).

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEEH 2= EIZR AR A F)

HE_ZT-TFE_A-+hBILFEE AEEH
— B E = RS EAEAKIBRBRERE
& - BREENE R EE 5439,000,0000T (ZZ— A
£ 1 440,300,00070) RSB AR ERE X
W RIRFZEABLE=H 25 T RKIRIEE
HERASRE 2 ATAD L ZBRIRSE - MER
EBLSELRITARAR ([EE]) ZEEF
ENNFE2% (ZF—NF ELRESFEM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 29 February 2020 EHZE—

LOANS FROM THE IMMEDIATE HOLDING
COMPANY

During the year ended 29 February 2020, the Group
obtained an unsecured revolving loan facility from the
immediate holding company with a facility limit of $200.0
million (2019: $200.0 million). The loans are interest-bearing
at 5% per annum (2019: 5% per annum).

At 29 February 2020, the available loan facility after taking
into consideration of the drawdown was approximately
$96.0 million (2019: $106.0 million) and the accrued interest
payable as of 29 February 2020 was approximately $198,000
(2019: $173,000).

DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

The debt securities are unsecured, denominated in HKD,
interest-bearing ranging from 6% to 7% per annum (2019:
6% to 7% per annum) with interest coupon being paid
semi-annually and will mature between 2021 and 2025. All
debt securities issued are measured at amortised cost.

22

23

%?Aﬁa‘ i e Bk

“ZE_AZThBIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTHIR)

EBEERARIZER
BHE_T-_TF_A-THhALFE KA5H
BEBERAANS—Z2ERKFRBRENRR
& & BREE4200,000,0007T (=T —L4F :
200,000,0007T) ° ZEFEHRIL5% 2 FFIE (=
T—NF 5% FFER)FFE -

B/\\\—v—?¢ H +j-L:E| %«ﬂ-l—&EthVTA
18 - TEJJ%ZETM%SZ’W%% 000,0007T (==

— 1% :106,000,0007T) MR -_TF —
A=+hA8 " ﬁ§\1"fﬁ§\n‘|'ﬁ°|JE'\%'JZ%198,000T_E(:
ZT—F%:173,0007T) °

ERITEERSF

ZEBHBHFHEER  UABTFE ENT
6%ZETW%ZFME(ZTE—NF  6%ET% L
FHR)FEAUFLFIN—RERE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao o B 2 A M

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAZ& T3 )

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

24 EXR-#HERRE

(a) Movement in equity (a) FEZZEH
The reconciliation between the opening and AEEGAERSARITS Hﬂ?ﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂi 4
closing balances of each component of the Group's R HBRHANGEEREFR AR
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated E7E =z A P EB D PG ﬂiiﬂ{Zﬁ@Jﬁli
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes UNNE
in the Company's individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
The Company ¥ |
(Accumulated
Capital losses)/
Share redemption Retained
Notes  Share capital premium Other reserve reserve profits Total
(RitER)/
15 Ba  ROEE Hthidfs EARERE  REEH @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Tr Tr T T
At 1 March 2018 R=B-N%
=R-H 20,874 156,358 56,964 502 (4.783) 229,915
Total comprehensive ERNZERY
expenses for the year s - = = = (35) (35
Interim dividend declared RERTER
and paid during the year T2 H
RE 24(b) 8 (15,840) - - - (15,832)
Purchase of own shares BOaRH 24(c)(i) (1,497) (50367) - 1,497 - (50,367)
At28 February 2019 and ~ W=F-AF
1 March 2019 ZA=t/H
R=%-0%
=h-H 19,385 90,151 56,964 1,999 (4,818) 163,681
Total comprehensive income ~ FRZERA
for the year &% - - - - 306,026 306,026
Interim dividends declared ~ RERER RN
and paid during the year ZHHRE 24(b) - (20,742) - - - (20,742)
Final dividends approved in 5 FEAEEHE
respect of the previous TRERRER
year and paid during the ~ ZREIRE,
year 24(b) - (14,151) - - - (14,151)
At 29 February 2020 R-%-%f%
ZA=thA 19,385 55,258 56,964 1,999 301,208 434,814

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%%Aﬁa‘ i e Bk

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—Z-_ZTF A -+ hHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTHIR)

X -mekks ()

(CONT'D)
(b) Dividends (b) RE
2020 2019
—ECEH T—NF
$'000 $'000
Tr T
Dividends recognised as distribution RENERBD RIS
during the year:
2019 Interim dividend — 1.07 cents (2019: Z=Z—hFEFHKE — K
2018 interim dividend 0.83 cents 1. 07 IJJ (ZZE—N5F:
(Note)) per share — )\ FHEIR B
Hﬁo.83ﬂh (Bf&E) ) 20,742 16,086
2019 Final dividend — 0.73 cents (2019: —NERRE — T
2018 final dividend Nil cents) per share 0.73(L (Z=E—N4&F:
—\FRERE
BRRZ) 14,151 =
Note: During the year ended 28 February 2019, interim M BE2E_ZT—NF_A=TNBIEFE  FHRKR

dividend was satisfied by way of cash of $15.8 million
and scrip issuance in lieu of the cash payment as
selected by shareholders. The scrip dividend was
satisfied by allotment of approximately 836,000 shares

of the Company at $0.3031 per share and was credited

as fully paid.

BLAZR 415,800,000 7Tk 15 & 3= AR 3R P i i 48
BIIREBEBROURERESRMN - REWBHEB
ZEHR0.303 170 2 (BB £V836,000i8 A A
AR IR I ABRTIERE

Subsequent to the end of reporting periods, a final WAEHIKE  BEEDEEMEE S-S FE—

dividend of 0.87 cents (2019: 0.73 cents) and a special
dividend of 0.28 cents (2019: Nil cents) in respect of
the year ended 29 February 2020 per share has been
proposed by the Directors and is subject to approval HEE RS FHOEZ S AEE o

by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

“t+hABLEFERMRBKRESR0.87ML (=
T—NF  F%0.731L) REERIR% S &H%0.281l

—E-NFBREMW)  AFBRRREERKR
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

Notes
M=
Authorised: EE
At 29 February 2020 and RZ-Z-ZF
28 February 2019 ZAZtABR
—2-NE
ZRAZt+/\B
Issued and fully paid: EBETRER:
At 1 March 2019 and RZE-NER
2018 —Z-/\$=R-H
Scrip dividend issued BEIRERR 24(c)(ii)
Purchase of own shares  B&EASEH 24(c)(iii)
At 28 February 2019, RZZE-N4F
1 March 2019 and ZRA=tNB-
29 February 2020 “T-N¥=R-H
RZZE-ZE
ZA=thA

Number of of ordinary

Par value shares shares
HE e ¢E| LZiEREE

$ ‘000 $'000

JT TR T

0.01 100,000,000 1,000,000

0.01 2,087,360 20,874

0.01 836 8

0.01 (149,728) (1,497)

0.01 1,938,468 19,385

f& 10 755 A B R UEU By

Nominal value

= A Y= N 4

The holders of shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All shares rank equally with regard to
the Company’s residual assets.

At the meeting of the Board held on 29 October
2018, the Board declared an interim dividend
of $0.83 cent per share, totalling $16,146,000,
with a scrip dividend option for the six months
ended 31 August 2018. The interim dividend was
distributed out of share premium. Ordinary shares
of 836,000 were issued by the Company in order
to satisfy shareholders’ scrip dividend elections
and the relevant scrip price for these shares is
$0.3031 per share. These shares rank pasi passu
with the existing ordinary shares in all respects.

The share premium was decreased by $15,840,000
as a result of the interim dividend. Of which,
$15,832,000 represented the amount settled by
cash and $8,000 represented the par value of the
ordinary shares issued.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEE#% = EiERAR A A

BERAAFESZ LELRBREHE—F-
FIERMERNR 2B EEHNZHFRE
AT

RZE-NFTAZTIABRGZES
gext BEFepnEE—_T—N\FNA
=+—HLAEAEIRF KBS FM%0.83
il - & #£16,146,0007T - AUQEbWxﬁ
BB SEERMBEEFDIK AR
%£17836,000 4% 3@ Hﬁ%ﬁéiﬁ%%ﬁ&ﬁ
B2BRE  mitERHD 2 HERERMDE
AER0.30317T ° B FRH R HELE
BEBR=ARSHAL -

f& 2% B B ok R H iR B mE D
15,840,000 ° E A + 15,832,0007T 4 BA
RE/EE 2 $%  M8,000 L BB BITE
B EE -
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B BB R M
for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_ZTF A -+ BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

During the year ended 28 February 2019, the
Company repurchased 149,728,000 shares
of the Company on the Stock Exchange with
prices ranging from $0.31 to $0.35. The
total consideration paid for these shares was
$50,367,000. All these shares were cancelled by
28 February 2019.

HE—_Z—-—NWF-_A=-+N\B L
FE AR RZFTIENT0.31
BILE03SB T ZEBRERAR
F1149,728,000/% & 17 Bttt F %
HER 24K E4&50,367,000T °
rELRERNMER-_Z—LFE_HA
—+ N\ BATEE -

For the year ended 28 February 2019 BEZZT-NF-_A=+N\BLF

I3

Number Aggregate
of shares consideration
repurchased after expense
Month A& (‘'000) Purchase price per share ("000)
=3 BRE
R&HEE (HIRRBERR)
(Fh) BRBEE (F8&)

Highest Lowest

B& RIK
Mar-18 —E-N\F=H 62,232 $0.345 $0.315 21,423
Apr-18 —ZE-N\FHEA 2,104 $0.345 $0.330 716
May-18 —ZT—-)\$HH 30,000 $0.345 $0.335 10,217
Jun-18 ZZE—-N\FRA 25,000 $0.335 $0.325 8,186
Jul-18 —ZE-N\F+tA 9,544 $0.330 $0.315 3,055
Aug-18 —E-NENA 7,688 $0.330 $0.305 2,439
Sep-18 —E-NFNA 5,440 $0.335 $0.320 1,759
Oct-18 —E-N\FTH 6,064 $0.335 $0.325 2,028
Nov-18 —E-NF+—A 1,656 $0.335 $0.325 544
Total HEt 149,728 50,367

Pursuant to section 37(3) of the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, the issued share capital of
the Company was reduced by the nominal value
of the repurchased shares. Pursuant to 37(4) of
the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, an
amount equivalent to the par value of the shares
cancelled of $1,497,000 was transferred from
share premium to the capital redemption reserve.
The premium paid on the repurchased shares of
$48,870,000 was charged to share premium.

BIERSEE RRAEIT3) K
RAFZBETRATIIZE B E R
M EEHEER REREFHSA
AEE37(4) G BEFHEHROEE
1,497,000t 2 FELEE BRI &
B8 = & "B O] (i - BLE FE AR
B EN 2% (E48,870,000TE B &
imER R
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Aok B 5 WA Mk

for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

There is no section in the Companies Law
of the Cayman lIslands and the Company’s
memorandum and article of association
governing the distribution of reserves. At 29
February 2020, the aggregate amount of reserve
available for distribution to equity shareholders of
the Company was approximately $413,430,000
(2019: $142,297,000), being the total amount of
share premium, other reserve and retained profits
(accumulated losses).

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account of the Company
may be applied for payment of distributions
or dividends to shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

On 5 February 2013, Oi Wah Holding Limited
entered into an agreement to acquire the
amounts due to shareholders by Oi Wah
Pawnshop Credit Limited totalling $44,963,406
by issuing 1,000 shares at $1.00, as fully-paid
shares, to three of the shareholders of the
Company. The acquisition has been reflected as
a reduction in the amounts due to shareholders
and a corresponding increase in capital reserve.

On 18 February 2013, the then shareholders
transferred the entire equity interest in Oi Wah
Holding Limited to the Company, in return,
the Company issue 9,999,999 shares, as fully-
paid shares to Kwan Lik Holding Limited as
the consideration. The difference between the
historical carrying value of equity acquired and
acquisition consideration is treated as an equity
movement and recorded in “Other reserve”.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEE#% = EiERAR A A

FERNESRRERNAG ZHEBE
BAEARERARNEREREED
EZEBfi-MN-_TE-_FEFE-A=+Ah
=N i 8 ARl K e oY
=L 5413,430,0007T (ZE— N
£ :142,297,0007T) * BIRD (B -
HEb R RRE BN (RErER) 2
4R o

REFASHEREE  ARALZKND
BRI HEBED RSORNE T
R - HERBEEE D IRR MBS E
Bi& ARRIAINERFRBHBEPX
REILPACT R

RZZT—=F_AFAHH " 0i Wah
Holding Limited&] 3 &% @ bAE B
MARAE=RAREREIT1,0001F %
EE1.007c 2Bk G - WiEA K
44,963,406t BEHEEERR
AR AT IRER FRIE - iR UK BE R Bk A
5 % R SR IR R A I B AR f R AR B 1
hne

RZZE—=F=A+/\RB  EFKRE
MR FEZEE R OI Wah Holding
Limitedz 2 #p IR A#E R - N A AE
A Kwan Lik Holding Limited4T
9,999,999 B R IR MDIERHKIE - P
Wkt s < B IR EE B Y IE KB
LEBER R —BEREE WA
[ EftofEE ]
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B BB R M
for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_ZTF A -+ BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

Capital redemption reserve represents the
nominal amount of the shares repurchased.

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for its shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost. The Group was not subject to external
imposed capital requirements, except for the
loan covenants attached to the interest-bearing
borrowings.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
cash and cash equivalents net of bank loans
and overdrafts, obligations under finance leases,
other loans and loans from immediately holding
company and equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company, comprising paid in capital and
reserves.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors capital with reference to
its debt position. The Group's strategy was to
maintain the equity and debt in a balanced
position with the debt equity ratio, being the
Group’s total borrowings over its total equity, no
more than 150%, and ensure there was adequate
working capital to repay its debt obligations.
As at 29 February 2020 the Group and the
Company’s debt equity ratio were 55.2% (2019:
73.6%) and 41.0% (2019: 107.7%) respectively.
No change was made on the Group's overall
strategy.

EXABEFEHECBRROD 2@
=

AEBEREAZHEZRBEDNRE
REBFELE 28 KMBEBY
HERKFEEZEREEARE
BEERAZRE  HESEBIRE
EOHmEREMERTTE ABIER
o AEREBAZ NN R INNE
AIRE - FHEEEMENERRER
Jre

AEENEARBERRS LIRS
FEY (MRRTEREES) - B’
BHEAE HtEXREBER
RNAEZEFRARA R BRR B G
o BRBEHRAREE-

REBEER N ERHEARREET
ma MEE  WERRRRERBR
THAEFEZEREEKFERERYL
BB AR R 2 o B R AR R 2 [
BSF  IRER BN 2 B3
BARZRBELRE -

REBERBEGEHRNERER -
AEBRBEEFER MEFE
R EERRE - B ERERE (AIAS
B BEERALERATE) TR
150% ' WHERB EHEEELEE
B - R_E_TF_A=-+hB"
REBRARBzcBEBEERLED
Bl A552% (ZEFE— 4 :73.6%)
K41.0% (ZF—NF :107.7%) °
REB 7 BEE B BE I EAAE H E )

Annual Report 2020 =& — TEF R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( BAZSTEI7R )

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25

BERREERAVE

VALUE
Categories of financial instruments TRt THER
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-hEF
$'000 $'000
Ft Tt
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost BB ATEZ CREE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BHEBEEMREEEY) 1,270,762 1,310,578
Financial assets measured at FVTPL — BEAFEFABRZ S/
mandatory & —5R il 121,211 120,977
1,391,973 1,431,555
Financial liabilities SR8 E
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HEEKATEZESRAE 500,052 612,514

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, accruals and other payables, bank loans and
overdrafts, loans from the immediate holding company,
other loans and debt securities issued. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

As the core business of the Group is engaged in secured
financing business in Hong Kong, including pawn loans and
mortgage loans, the main risks associated with its business
are credit risk and the need to maintain a fairly liquid
position.

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—Z-_ZTF A -+ hHILFE

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25
VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT’D)

(a) Credit risk management

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to its loan receivables. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the Group have established policies and systems
for the monitoring and control of credit risk.

The Group has developed and adopted a systematic
approach in running its business in an efficient way,
including the adoption of internal control procedures
for risk management purposes.

The Group manages its credit risk on a conservative
basis by evaluating its loan portfolio in relation of
quantitative risk/return criteria.

In relation to the pawn loan business, the Group
has adopted internal control procedures including
the identification and evaluation of ownership and
obtaining an accurate valuation of personal property.
The Group usually grants loans with a loan-to-value
ratio ranging from 50% - 85%, depending on the
type of collateral and the valuation is made at the
point of granting the loan. The maximum exposure of
the credit risk arising from pawn loan business at the
end of each reporting period is the carrying amount of
the pawn loan receivables as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

MHEREERAFE (&)

TREREEEFERBEK (&)

(a)

= B m i B2
AEERHFHRERTEEECMHESER
NEBREMEEMEAR &R EERR
RIFBMBRARMAZEFEE KA
B-AREZEERREIERANERER
EX - R EERARBERE AREC
1 E BUR K bl E BB RIS & A

AEECHERRA-BERICTR A
FEAMmz TAREEE  BREARAR
EESENMRAZ ARREZERT -

AEEFEBTEEERAS 2 EERR,
ElHERAE - RTEREEE @R

MEEEREBME  ARECRAANE
ERERF BEEA NS AELREG
BAMEZ #REE - REAFR IR
B REE—RIEN F50%E85% 2 &K
BAELRFERER  HEREREKE
fEd - MEBEREHR AREEREBE
2z &= EERR RV BRREAT
Z W E B BREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( BAZSTEI7R )

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT’D)

(a)

Credit risk management (CONT'D)

Different valuations are used for different types of
collaterals.

- Gold prices quoted from The Chinese Gold &
Silver Exchange Society

- Diamond prices quoted from latest Rapaport
Diamond Report

- Watches quoted from either retail listed prices or
parallel import wholesale prices

- Consumer electronic products quoted from
updated pricelists of second-hand consumer
electronic products

A customer is considered to have defaulted in
repayment of the pawn loan if they have not redeemed
the collateral or renewed the pawn loan by the end
of the term of the pawn loan. At the Group's sole
discretion, a grace period of up to six weeks may be
provided to customers after the end of the loan period
during which the Group may allow the customers to
renew the pawn loan and/or redeem the collateral.
The Group will take possession of the collateral if
the customer has not redeemed the collateral or
renewed the pawn loan by the end of the loan period
or the grace period provided. Repossessed assets are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 3 and the carrying amount
of repossessed assets as at 29 February 2020 was
$9,292,000 (2019: $6,451,000). The Group will
proceed to dispose the collateral within a reasonable
time after possession.

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A

25 BiEREERAFVE (&)
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_ZTF A -+ BILFE

In relation to the mortgage loan business, the Group
has also adopted internal control procedures for the
identification and evaluation of the legal ownership
and accurate valuation of property. As a matter of
risk management, the Group usually grants loans with
a loan-to-value ratio of no more than 70% of the
value in the valuation report of the property, which
is generally lower than bank’s loan-to-value ratio for
mortgages which can be as high as 70%. In a few
cases if the customers request loans with the loan-
to-value ratio of over 70%, approval from the chief
executive officer is required. For the valuation of the
property, the Group will make reference to a third
party valuer and/or the internet valuation services
provided by banks in Hong Kong. The Group holds
collateral against loan receivables in the form of
mortgages over properties located in Hong Kong. The
Group considers that the credit risk arising from the
mortgage loan receivables is significantly mitigated by
the property held as collateral, with reference to the
estimated market value of the property at the grant
date. The Group may take possession of assets held
as collateral through court proceeding or voluntary
delivery of possession by the borrowers. It disposes the
property by auction once receiving the possession.

Management has overall responsibility for the Group’s
credit policies and oversees the credit quality of the
Group's loan portfolio. In addition, management
reviews the recoverable amount of loans and
receivables individually or collectively at each reporting
date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
management considers that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

RIRBERAEREBM S AREIRC K
RREEERERF B8R R hFHE 2
REARNEEGE  HRRERER)N
B AREBRBERIEREHEMRERS
MEE70% 2 EREEEL RERER -
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ZEFEBELE EXEBRT  MHE
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FRRITAIIRE 2B LEERS - AEE
IR B Z B E RIS 7 5L UL
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REH BBz GEtHE  BRIRBERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—_ZT-_TF _A -+ N HIEFE
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT’D)

(a) Credit risk management (CONT'D)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer
and therefore significant concentrations of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 8.1% (2019: 7.6%) and 33.1% (2019: 35.9%)
of the total loan receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

Although all customers are from Hong Kong, the
concentration of credit risk is limited due to the
customer base is large and unrelated.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from loan
receivables are set out in note 15.

The Group has developed its processes for measuring
ECL including monitoring of credit risk, incorporation
of forward-looking information and the methodology
used to measure ECL. The Group has policies and
procedures in place to appropriately maintain the
models used to assess and measure ECL.

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25

VALUE (CONT'D)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE—Z-_ZTF A -+ hHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONT'D)

(a) Credit risk management (CONT'D)

The Group categorises the credit quality of its loans

BEREREERATE (&)

EREAREEBEREE (&)

(a) FEREBEE (&)

AEBRBEEHEEBHERLETIED

receivable and interest receivables according to 3
different stages under the ECL model:

o Stage 1: financial assets without significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition
where loss allowance is calculated based on
12-month ECL

o Stage 2: financial assets with significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition where loss
allowance is calculated based on lifetime ECL

o Stage 3: credit impaired assets where loss
allowance is calculated based on lifetime ECL

FEE: BMnREAAREERER
WEAREINZ SREE - HEIRE
wRE12E A BREEERTE

F2RE AR RERIAREE R R
KIgg iz £MEE - HEREER
ErHEREEEEAE

FE3ER - FEEREEE  HEBR
wEREE PR EREERTE

The credit quality classification of loans receivable and
their respective interest receivables using the Group's
ECL model is set out in the table below:

TREJIRAAEERHEEEBREAZ
ERERREEZREMEZEEER

D

29 February 2020
—E2-FF-A=t1NH

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total
F1EE H2ME B F3ME B
128 A7 2HEHEE Z2HEHGCE
FEEE g B8 Bt
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Loan receivables FEW & X 1,270,759 23,549 7,338 1,301,646
Less: impairment R E R
allowance - - (3,011) (3,011)
Loan receivables net of  EUE X (F1K
impairment allowance VEREREL=D) 1,270,759 23,549 4,327 1,298,635
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25

VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONT'D)

(a) Credit risk management (CONT'D)

BERERERQAFE (F)

TrEMEEREBERBER (&)

(a) FEEBEZE (&

28 February 2019
“E-NF-AZTNE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total
FIREER F2MEER FIPEER
128788 ZHEHEE Z2HBEHEE
EEEE B &8 FEE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr FIr Fr Fr
Loan receivables FEMWE K 1,370,779 8,900 7,526 1,387,205
Less: impairment BB
allowance - - (1,000) (1,000)
Loan receivables net of  JEUREZ (1R
impairment allowance B 1,370,779 8,900 6,526 1,386,205

(b) Market risk management

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in interest rate.

Market risk exposures are measured by sensitivity
analysis. There has been no change to the Group's
exposure to market risk or the currencies as the
financial assets and liabilities are primarily denominated
in Hong Kong dollars in which it manages and
measures the risk throughout the relevant period.

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 &= =2

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to certain loan receivables, loans from the
immediate holding company, debt securities issued,
lease liabilities and obligations under finance leases
which carried at fixed rates.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable rate loan receivables, bank
loans and overdrafts, other loans and cash at banks.

It is the Group's policy to keep its certain of its loan
receivables, bank loans and overdrafts and other loans
at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair
value interest rate risk. The Group's cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
prime rate, HIBOR and HSBC prime rate. The Group's
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is not material
as these balances have a short maturity period.

(i)~ Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure of the Group
at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming that the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 100
basis points (2019: 100 basis points) increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

At 29 February 2020, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
(2019: 100 basis points) in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Group's profit after tax
by approximately $7,914,000 (2019: $7,600,000).

B B B R M R
T-TF-_A-t+hBLEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

AEEEYRETRGER  EBERA
ArER DRGEBES REAER
BEEFEH 8 RAREREENLA
TR R E -

AR E IR E S B B R A E R RTT
ERMES HMERRRTREARZ
RemnENERER -

AEERRERRFDNERFEZE
TRKRER ROTERMEAREMBE
R EEREREQATEMNERER - AE
BzReRENXEAREIZETRRES
& FBRITRXFERESRESF
RZ K - AEBEFE LR RENERE
BRI AEKX - U Ty RN Z S A SRE R

5 o

(i)  HEE DT
TXFRESREN T IR ERE B
AANGKEPES 2 RBREE - 275
BRERABEPRREEZERTA
REEFRBREEMRR - 100@£
B(ZZ—NF:100EE£%) £t
ETRETDRAEEZEERABRNERE
WA E SR KREEE A
KAlge IR 2 A B E EATIERT(E o

RZE_ZTF_A=-_+NB &
EEAREE FAH TR 100EE
Z(—ZF—NF:1001@FESZ) &
FIBEEMEERFIAEZERLT
15 B B N 5 B B B A& s B AR
D#7,914,000L (= — L F ¢
7,600,0007T) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFIR )

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with loan/borrowing
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions and immediate holding
company to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long-term. The Directors are satisfied that the Group
will be able to meet in full its financial obligations as
and when fall due in the foreseeable future.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s financial liabilities and leased liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end
of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay. Specifically, bank overdrafts
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the
banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity
dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates:

AEBECZERBETHERERDESCTR
IR RBETERBERH  AERE
HERACHSREALRKREZES MK
BLREBERARZARAGESREE -
NENAEBZEHEERBARDEESS
2 -BEEMAKER AN AR REE
SUBTT R BB H5 I

TRALAEBERHREMRIRAHORR
Reng (BRRanMXsl (1E%E)
RERSHRBITZNEXFAEZHNE )G
BEremBaEREEREZRHRENE
R UEAEEABERBERAZKER
Hi- AfeM s TmiRiT@BITEEER
Z BRI - B R B SR AE R IR BRAT
BIOINARFERA - EMIETESRA
B BB ARBAOEER B BETE -

29 February 2020

“E-EE-A-tAhH
Total
Within 1  More than 1 More than 2 contractual
year or on year but less years but less undiscounted Carrying
demand than 2 years than 5 years cash flow amount
MER 10 E 26N E BHKREH
RREX BAHR2E BLHE HEeREAR REE
$000 $'000 $°000 $000 $000
T T T T T
Accruals and other e E R R
payables RFIR 5,504 - - 5,504 5,504
Bank loans and overdrafts  SEITEREEN
(Note) (F=E) 107,018 - - 107,018 103,752
Other loans HiER 132,800 - - 132,800 124,112
Loans from the immediate ~EBEEFRAGIZE
holding company A 104,096 - - 104,096 104,000
Debt securities issued BEETEBES 9,790 89,290 96,130 195,210 162,684
359,208 89,290 96,130 544,628 500,052
Lease liabilities MEEE 11,803 10,274 4,088 26,165 24,343

BEMEGEREEBREARAA
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 BI#EMBEERAFHE (&)
VALUE (CONT'D)
Financial risk management objectives and policies cREKEEEERBEE (&)
(CONT’'D)
(c) Liquidity risk management (CONT'D) (c) REELEREE (&)
28 February 2019
ZE-nEZA=TNA
Total
Within 1 More than 1  More than 2 contractual
year or on year but less years but less More than 5 undiscounted Carrying
demand than 2 years than 5 years years cash flow amount
MERT 1E50E 25N L BHRER
REX BHmaE BHH5E SENE REREAE RHEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
5 5 5 5 5 5
Accruals and other fERT B A REfM
payables JEfT 3R 6,691 - - - 6,691 6,691
Bank loans and overdrafts  SRITEFKEX
(Note) (FitzE) 84,859 - - - 84,859 83,950
Obligations under finance ~ Y& E&1E
leases 76 - - - 76 76
Other loans i &3 285,507 - - - 285,507 265,232
Loans from the immediate EBERARZ
holding company X 94,072 94,072 94,000
Debt securities issued BETERES 9,790 9,790 150,730 26,537 196,847 162,565
480,995 9,790 150,730 26,537 668,052 612,514

Note:

Bank overdrafts with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “within one year or on
time band in the above maturity analysis.
At 29 February 2020, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amount of the bank overdrafts amounted
to approximately $33,298,000 (2019: $5,267,000).
Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the Directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe
that the bank overdrafts will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows will amount to $33,811,000 (2019:
$5,473,000).

demand”

Hiat - MR 2 RERGRRZRITEXIIA L

ME DT [ M1 ERRIRE R B
N-R=ZZT_TF_A=+NB 8BITE
T2 ARENBR A& B REX) /33,298,000
(ZZ— 1% :5,267,0007T) > EEEIX
SBZHBRRN  EFERABRITRKAA
BEITIEER B RE R BE - EEAE
7 RITB B RBERIGRTHETE
FAHEE BN A RFIBRERE
#EE1% 533,811,000 (ZF— L&
5,473,0007T) °

o
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ZFE_A+NBLFE

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25

VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONT’'D)

(d) Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, grouped into Levels 1
to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable in accordance with the Group's accounting

policy.

PBEREERQVE (&)
SREREERBRIE (8)

(d) 2@ TAZARFEE
TEREHRREBREPRRERATFETEZS
MIAZAN BRAFERBEAEE SR
BRAI TERRZEERRFI1E3H -

29 February 2020
ZE-EF-A=+NH

Fair value Fair value measurements categorised into
NTE NTEFEDERUTER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
FE1R F24% E3%
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Recurring fair value BEHEAFET=E
measurement
Financial assets: TREE
- Loan receivables at —RATFEA
FVPL B 2 B
B3 121,211 - - 121,211
28 February 2019
—E-hFE=A=tN\H
Fair value Fair value measurements categorised into
NTE ANTEFAEDERUTER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
FE14R F24% E3R
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Recurring fair value KEHEATENE
measurement
Financial assets: TREE
- Loan receivables at —RATFEA
FVPL B2 R
B 120,977 — — 120,977

There was no transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3 in

both years.

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25

VALUE (CONT’'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONT'D)

(d) Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments
(CONT'D)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
The fair value of loan receivables at FVPL is determined
using income approach by discounting the contractual
future cash flow. The fair value measurement is
negatively correlated to the discount rate.

The movement during the year in the balance of Level

idated Financial Statements

Aok T B 5 A Mk

ed 29 February 2020 HiZE—ZE-—ZTE - A -+ A BIL&EE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA THIR )

MREREERDFE (F)
SMEREEERRIE ()
(d) £BTAZAFETE (&
FEIRATAER BN
RATAE AR 2 EREH 2 AFET

BRERAWAERBREANORRE S REMN
BE - A VEFEEMRERZAIEH-

EIRAFEGBEBRERNZ Z T

3 fair value measurements is as follows: Rk
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NF
$'000 $'000
o I
At 1 March R=A—H 120,977 -
Transferred from loan receivables at RERANE B I 15 i 5 228
amortised cost upon adoption of F 518 B IRBESHR AR
HKFRS 9 Bz R E R R - 111,439
Loans granted BEERER 472,169 456,269
Loans matured EEHER (471,909) (446,728)
Net losses recognised in consolidated RireiBEakEEBAK
statement of profit or loss and the R EERE
comprehensive income (26) (3)
At 29 February/28 February RZ—A=+hB/=A
—+\H 121,211 120,977
Total losses for the year included in W=ZA=+hRA "=A
consolidated statement of profit or loss iy WIN=E N SRR
and other comprehensive income as at REMPEmBARZ
29 February/28 February FREEERE
(26) (3)

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
as at the end of the reporting periods are not
materially different from their fair values.

EEAR RRSHRARGEMBRERT
BREERAIRCEREERERARL
REEEEAFEIESEAER -
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for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_TF A -+ BAILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( AAS TR )

26 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 26 KREHEHAIE
The Group as lessee AEEEREEAA
As at 28 February 2019, the Group's total future minimum RZZBE-—NE-A=+N\B REEBRBEYED
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases of AR 2 E BN RRRRBERIBERE
properties are payable as follows: /NN
2019
—E-NEF
$'000
Fr
Within one year —FA 12,432
After one year but within five years —FRERFA 17,639
30,071
As at 28 February 2019, operating lease payments RZF-NAFZAZ+N\H EEHERBEA
represented rentals payable by the Group for certain of its SEAREETYERN S KHEAZHEE
properties. Leases were negotiated for an average term of FEHFHA—ERF -
one to five years.
The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties AEBRZERELAMRBEEEZEE17
which the leases were previously classified as operating BOBAKEME 2 ME 2 ABEA - AEEER
leases under HKAS 17. The Group has initially applied HKFRS RIETEWEERERB AN BREERF 16
16 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this e REZ A AREERZ=ZF-NAF=A—
approach, the Group adjusted the opening balances at 1 AAZREHRARRARZEMETAIEE
March 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to these BE(RME2) BT NF=A—B& X
leases (see note 2). From 1 March 2019 onwards, future A E TRIB TR BRI 5 3P IR AR & B H 7R
lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities in the RETERABMERR  ARANKERRKHE

consolidated statement of financial position in accordance T2 BRI 14 5 -
with the policies set out in note 3, and the details regarding
the Group’s future lease payments are disclosed in note 14.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

26 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 26 KX&HSEHKIE (&)

(CONT'D)
The Group as lessor AEBERAEHAA
The Group sub-leases out a number of properties under AEBERBKEEHESHLZEAME - HE2¥H
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period FHBEA—ZRF HEFE—RNHEEHLE
of one to five years, lease payments are usually increased at RELEF UARBTISHEE - SIEEERE#
the end of the lease term to reflect market rentals. None of MHERKIH
the leases includes variable lease payments.
As at 29 February 2020, undiscounted lease payments under RZEZTF=_A=+NA AEEBRRRH
non-cancellable operating leases in place at the reporting FMEWRHREBBHER 2 T HEEKZHER
date will be receivable by the Group in future periods as TARBGREERIBAT :
follows:
2020
—EF-FF
$'000
T
Within one year —&R 2,413
After one year but within two years —F R BERFR 1,947
After two year but within three years MEZRB=ZFR 720
After three year but within four years = FRENFR 360
5,440
As at 28 February 2019, the Group's total future minimum R-ZE—NAF-A-+N\H AEBREMEDR
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases of ARGEGEHE 2 BUCR R EHEFRIALRE
properties were receivable as follows: LU
2019
—E-hF
$'000
T
Within one year —F R 1,378
After one year but within five years —FRBRFRA 956
2,334
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 70517R )

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27

ZFE_A+NBLFE

EXBELIRS

TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material related party

BRI EGRAMBREAEMEHABREZRSH R
RSN AEBCAIMATEARRBELNRS

transactions:

(a) Key management personnel remuneration () FEEBASFHMH

2020 2019
—EF-%F —TNF
$'000 $'000
T T
Salary and other emoluments e hEAmNE 7,129 6,874
Discretionary bonuses Y IBTEAT 5,040 5,045
Contributions to MPF RIER R 90 90
12,259 12,009

(b) Transactions with other related parties (b) EREMBEEAIRS

During the year, the Group entered into transactions

FR AEEREBEXRGBIET EEE

with related parties in the ordinary course of its FES 2R
business as follows:
2020 2019
—E-BE —E-NF
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Rental deposits placed with FUTEFTFAZHE RS
— Kwan Chart (Holding) Company Limited —ZXR&EEHRAA 160 160
— Kwan Chart Estate Company Limited —HRBEFERAA 110 110
— Mr. Chan Chart Man —PRE kA 180 180
Management fee incurred to HATETELEZERE
— Kwan Chart Estate Company Limited —HRBEXERAH - 33
Management fee deposit placed with MUTEFTFAZERE
b7
— Kwan Chart Estate Company Limited —HREXERRAA 22 22

@ Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B (E SR AR A A




for the year ended 29 February 2020 # %=

The Group entered into a 2-year lease in respect of a
property from Kwan Chart (Holding) Company Limited,
a company with common beneficiary owners with the
Company. During the year ended 28 February 2019,
the amount payable by the Group under the lease is
$80,000 per month. The rental payable to the related
company was $960,000 during the year ended 28
February 2019. As at 29 February 2020, the carrying
amount of such lease liabilities is $256,000. During the
year ended 29 February 2020, the Group made lease
payment of $960,000 to the related company.

The Group entered into a 2-year lease in respect of a
property from Kwan Chart Estate Company Limited,
companies with common beneficiary owners with
the Company. During the year ended 28 February
2019, the amount payable by the Group under the
lease was increased from $48,000 to $55,000 per
month. The rental payable to the related company was
$637,000 during the year ended 28 February 2019.
As at 29 February 2020, the carrying amount of such
lease liabilities is $163,000. During the year ended
29 February 2020, the Group made lease payment of
$660,000 to the related companies.

The Group entered into a 2-year lease in respect of a
property from Mr. Chan Chart Man, a director of the
Company. The amount payable by the Group under the
lease is $90,000 per month. The rental payable to the
related party was $1,048,000 during the year ended 28
February 2019. As at 29 February 2020, the carrying
amount of such lease liabilities is $288,000. During the
year ended 29 February 2020, the Group made lease
payment of $1,080,000 to the related party.

The Directors consider that all the above related party
transactions during the year were conducted on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course
of the Group’s business.

e W R M
—E_RE_A_tNAHIEFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TR )

AEBRREBZREBEGR AR (HAR
REEBEREEEEBAZRART) 2 —H
MEIUMFHE - BHEZZT—NLF=A
“HNBLFE AEBREBEHEREMSZ
SHEAEFHAS80,000L HE_TE—NF=
A+ N NBHLEFE EMEBRARZEAS
/3960,000 - R -_ZE-FTFE-F—+Ah
H B@EHEEAEGE2RAEA256,000
Lo BEZTE-TF AT NABILF
B AEBEERBEARZFHEERE
960,0007T

AEERKREBEREXZFR AR (ER
AREEREESEHEAEAZRAR) 2 —H
MEIIVMERE -HE-_ZT—NLF A
ZHNBLEFE AEEREHAEREN
Z%%EEEH% 0007 T Z=55,0007T °
HE_ZT—NF_A-_+/\HILFE &
1#?%%%@72?3%795637 000L - R =F

TZE_A-tHhhB EHEHEEEGEZE
ﬁ@?’%1630007ﬁ BE-ZT-_ZF_A
ZTNHELFE  AEBEREHARX
S EFIE660,0007T °

AEERKERARRAIEETHRREXEEZ
—IEWEIYMFERE -ASEREMR
EREMZFIEAEE H90,0007T &= —
T-NF-_A-t+N\BHILFE ENEE
H 2 & 51,048,000t N T4
—A-thB EHEHEaEZRAES
288,000t  HE_ZE_ZTEF_A_t+h
BIEFE AEBERBERNFHER
751,080,0007T °

E=RG LAFAMBAETRS IR

—REEEFIRAAEEBE R —RELB
FEFRaETT -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( BAZSTEI7R )

28

29

30

31

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 29 February 2020, the Group entered
into new arrangements in respect of leased properties. Right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of approximately $8,615,000
were recognised at the commencement of the leases.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates the MPF Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs, capped at $1,500 per month, to the MPF
Scheme, in which the contribution is matched by employees.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
$579,000 (2019: $606,000) represents contributions payable
to this scheme by the Group in respect of the current
accounting period.

No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future year.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19
outbreak”) in the first quarter of 2020, the Group will
pay close attention to the development of the COVID-19
outbreak and evaluate its impact on the financial position
and operating results of the Group. As at the date on which
this set of financial statements were authorised for issue, the
Group was not aware of any material adverse effects on the
financial statements as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures in the consolidated statement
of cash flows have been restated to conform to the current
year's presentation.
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Non-current asset
Investment in subsidiaries

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Trade and other receivables
Loans to a subsidiary

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Accruals and other payables
Bank loans

Amounts due to subsidiaries
Tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liability
Debt securities issued

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

Notes:
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(@  Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

(b)  Loans to a subsidiary are revolving, unsecured, interest-bearing

at 6% (2019: 6%) per annum and repayable on demand.

RN
B BB R M
for the year ended 29 February 2020 HE T -_ZTF A -+ BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAASTTHI7R )

Notes 2020
k3 =L i
$'000
Ft

57,064

a 253,144
256

b 321,240
1,970

576,610

1,656

15,453

a 17,052
2,015

36,176

540,434

597,498

23 162,684

434,814

24
19,385
415,429

434,814

EE

2019
—E-NF
$'000
T

57,064

227

321,240
1,734

323,201

1,803
13,683
37,684

849

54,019
269,182

326,246

162,565
163,681

19,385
144,296

163,681
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( AAS TR )

At the end of reporting periods, the Company has direct or RBEBMR ARBRTIMBLRE (FFEA
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which AERLARE) BEEEZLMERES  FHEL
are private companies, particulars of which are set out T
below:
Principal Place and date Issued and fully paid Attrlbutable e ultémterest
country of of incorporation/ up capital/registered
Name of company %p%rét?ién esﬁtgzllsh}\ent capltal 2020 2019 Principal activities
NAER EE vkt Y g=p iﬁiiﬁﬂi/ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂi Z2-2F “TNF IEXE
Directly held sub5|d|ary
ERRARBA
0Oi Wah Holding L|m|ted Hong Kong BVI 2,000 ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment holding
31 May 2012 with no par value
0i Wah Holding Limited &7 Eﬁgﬁéiﬂ 4 g 2,000/ EE1E 2 BRI 100% 100% BARMR
|nd|rectly held sub5|d|ar|es
FEHEHEL
0i Wah Pavvnshop Credit Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordmary 100% 100% Pawn broking and
Limited 22 March 2000 shares money Iendmg
REAXEEARRE &R %féﬁfﬂ . 10,000,000/ % &A% 100% 100% H#ERME
Hing Wah Pawnshop Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Pawn broking and
Credit Limited i 12 April 2012 money \endmg
RERXEERRDA  FAR i T 1R 100% 100% HERKE
Wai Wah Pavvnshop Credit Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Pawn broking and
Limite i 12 April 2012 money \endmg
1:;%&%@%1 EARRE ER Ep _rmA - 1REER 100% 100% H#ERME
0i Wah Property Credit Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Money lending
Limited 20 February 2014
RENREEARAR BB Ep A R Bk 100% 100% HfE
0i Wah Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Hong :(ong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Consultant
4 April 2014
S TLVC I | WEEE 0% 100% HEER
Oi Wah Credit Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Money lending
} 29 January 2015 X
BEEEARAH i &2 et 1REER 100% 100% Mg
Dream City Credit Limited  Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100% Inactive
(formerly known as Qi 1 April 2015 (Note)
Wah Finance Limited i \ : N
ZREEARAR (AR FA A 1REBER - 100% BEE%
FEMBERAR) —Z-hFEWNA—H (M=)
0i Wah Mortgage Limited  Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Inactive
1 April 2015
FEREARA BB it i BERR 0% 100% EEEE
0i Wah Pawnshop Limited Hong Kong HongbKong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Inactive
15 February 2016 N
BEARARLA 50 8E A IREER 100% 100% EEE?
iy S
Note: The company was disposed during the year ended 29 February B Z AR EREBEE—E-—EF—A—-+hHItE
2020. EFLALE -
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities #ﬁﬂliﬁﬁq&ﬁf\ﬁlﬂ BEER HMENBARD
during both years and at the end of both years. TR MG E S
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